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(At 0930 hours the Court reas.3embles 
pursuant to adjournnent, the same 
President, Ma~bers, a nd Judge Advocate 

} be ing present) .. 

The a ccused are · again brought before the Court. 

• ; ' '': , t-

CAPr. BROWN; On Sa turday morning I concluded all the evidence I wished to 
call on behalf of }tla thes, and I now ,propose to call the accused otto 
Cale sson.. 

THE ACCUSED, OTTO CALESSON ' takes his stand at 
the pla.ce from which the other witnesses have 
given their evidence and having b een duly 

. :;;worn is eX8iilined by CAPTAIN BROWN as follows:-

Q Wl1.a. t is your f ull n:une ? A. Otto Kulessa. 

,Q Where a nd 'lv-hen 1.'Tore you born ? 
burg in East Pru.ss w.. 

A. On the 4th Septemb er 1892 at Rasten-

Q I believe you a r c marriod a nd have three children ? A. Yes. 
I 

Q When did you join t he G.er wan arrflY ? A. On the 23rd May 1 941+. 

Q Di d you volunteer '? A. No, cOflScripted on t l'lO 23rd May. 

Q Where did you go then' ? A. About the 15th June I went to Strutthof. 

Q What did you do there ? 
\ 

A. Tra ining ther e up to the 10th September 1941+. -

-Q AndtBen where did you go? A. On the 15th September" I was transferred 
f 

I ivt th another 104 men to Hi ttelbau concentration camp. 

Q V[·..;re you then tra nsferred t o the SS ? 
to the' SS. 

A. On the 16th I wa s tro.nsferrod 

Q . 'Where · did you go ort the 1'6th ? A. To NortllD..usen. 

Q How were you employed a t Northaus(;u? A. I was in charge: of the machines 
ther e - working at t he conceD:trat:Lon croup for the requisitioning of' · 
machines and for t he: a dminis tro.ti on of them a t Mi tte lbau. 

THE PRESIDENT : Whq. t HlD..chines ? A. For mines - mining machinery. 

CAPT. 13ROym: Wer e you ever Ciilploycd as 0. guard in the Dom concentration 
camp? A. Iho.d nothing to do 'Ni th thc cai1lp. 

Q When di d you l Y3..ve Northau.sen ? A. On the 4th April 1 945, in t he evening. 

. Q Whor e did you go? . A. I went bo.ck to Doro. vvi th the rG'filaindm~ of' the 
machines, but I r laS told the r e by Qborsturrnftlht'or Moser tha t we vrere going 
to .Neucn~u8 concontration c ronp. 

Q . Did you t ,ro.ve l on the f i rst tra in for Ncucngal1l11le ? A. Yes. 

Q Did you· a rrive a t NcuengillNne? A. No, we did not a rrive in Neuengammc 
but had to continue to Bergen.-Bclsen. 

Q When did you o.r r iv8, a t Bergen-Bclsen ? A. On the 10th April. 

2. 
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Q Wo~o you in charge of the train ? 
chargo of the train. 

A. Oborscharfuhrer Hart.v:i..e was in 

Q . Did you travel in a coach vnth some of the prisoners? A. No, I l~d a 
coach for niyself because I had several instruments ,nth m~. 

Q What type of instrunents? A. Levelling instruments, cowpasses, and all 
sorts of .other utensils necessary for l ovelling work. 

Q When you arrived at Bergen-Belsen where did you go ? A. To Bargen. 

Q What block did you go to at Bergcn ? A. 83, 87, 85. 

Q What ' vror e your duties in that c~.~ ? A. I yms put in charge of block 
88, and the first day was spent' ,dth trying to accomodate 600 prisoners 
in: this block. 

Q What did you do in the next f ew days? A. I went for waDes. 

Q Were you deta iled t o a ssist in cleaning up that ca;np? A. I did not get 
a dir ect order. I was not det a iled, but thoro v~s plenty of . cinder lying 
about so I ga ve an order to the prisoners t o try and get rid of this 
cinder and their work would be f i nished 'when they had clone that. 

Q I am now 'going t o r efer to t he evidence against you. Firstly, voluillo 13, 
page 25, the evidence of Zamoski~ You reaC1',lber the witness Zaliloski in 
court? A. Yes. 

Q Ho sta tod t hat you wer e in ch~rgG of the transport . that ho travelled in, 
and tr..at he a sked you for S OiYlU wate r and you replicd:"You cun get some vvater 
vnth lClY pistol". Did any such incident eve;r happen? A. No. 

Q H0 wont on t o suy t11:'1. t in one vvn.e;gon the r e were 190 men unO. by the time 
. Y9u arrived a t Bclscn dore tha n 1n lI' of these men had diod. Wha t have you 

to say a'cout that ? A. That is not true • 

. Q He a lso s a id that you stood at the door of a block and boat people; is 
that truo ? A. No. 

Q I fuil now gOll1g to refer to the deposition of Jekol Gutman, pugo 30. Tho 
court vnll rCilK.'liiber that he corroborated ZaiilOski' s a ffida vi t , which ViaS 

put in. I propose to refer to pa r a graph 4 of that a f f idavit. (To the 
vrltness) You have seen the a ffid:LVi t of Zamoski? A. Yes. 

Q .A;re the s t a temc;m ts thL'l t he !ik'l.kcs in paragraph 4 in t hat a ffidavit correct ? 
A. It is not truc. 

Q Tho next deposition I refer to i :~ tb.:lt of Muller, page 109, exhibit 64. 
You :have seen the affidavit of Muller'? A. , Yes. ' 

Q He ma kes certain sta t ements in paragraph 2 rega rding a j oUrney from Dora 
to Belsen, and he r of ers t o you sr~oting El. ll~ln who v~s trying t o get some 
ca rrots. What have you to suy about that? . L.. I ,do not Imov'/' anything 
about it. 

Q I n pa r agraph 3 he sa y$ tha t you beat a nmUber of prisopors who were going 
out of block 87 ' to clean up the I')uds. What have y ou to say about t~t ? 
A. The first thing is there wore; no rouds t o be cleaned becauso they were 
clean in Belsen. The second thine; is I had nothing t o do with block 87 
at all. I wa s in cha rge ot' 88 a nlL I hQd no say about people in 87. 

I 
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Q I now 'r ufcr to the deposition of l-{;:J.schiner, page 119, exhibit 71, para­
graph 2. He states t hat he arriv'jd at Belsen from Dora about the 2nd 
April, and tha t you wore in cha r ce of his transport a nd that you shot a 
man whG was trying t o get some 'irl tor. A. On the 2nd April I was not in 
Belsen. I v'laS in Northausen. It Yfe"S Easter Monday and I was a t church 
that day. 

Q He a lso says tha t 10 prisoners VIT10 111ld died during the j ourney we~e takcn 
froT.1 the lorries 'and left lying there. During your j ourney to Belsen did 
you a t a ny point trave l in lorries? A. No. 

Q Ha ve you ever shot a ny prisoners? A. No. 

Q Have you ever hit prisoners with an iron b ar? 
I 

A. No. 

Q Ha ve you ever ill-treated prisoners? A. No, I have' not ill-trcated 
prisoners , but once 'wh en an officer froril the Wehn:18.cht vvantec to inspect 
block: 88, I just -Ijvn.nt ed t o I.1ake sure t oot overything was clean and tid;y, 
a nd I saw that one r oor.1 of tha t blpck ,!/as not clean. So I t ook a broc)I'o1 
and I shmved thed t hat they Gust clean undor the b eds a s Vlell, and I hit 
one on hisbacksidc. 

Q Did you hit arw of then so serioUDly as to injure them or ca use their 
dea th? A. No. 

Q Was Oberscba rfubrcr Be:CJ.t\.,--lck in charge of Block 87 ? 

IMAJOR WINWOOD: No cross-cXamil'1..D.tion. 
:MAJOR IvlliNRO: No qu esti ons, ' 
MA.JOR CRANFIELD: No ques tions. 

CAPT. ROBERTS: No questimls . 

Cross - DX<.rtLlincd by GtLPTAiN FIELDEN 

A. Yes. 

Q When did you first sce tha t i:1an Q t Bels en ? (Indioa ting ' No . 25, Fronz 
Stqf el)? A. W'ne.n we were all a rres t ed. 

Q Did he e ver go into canlp No.1 ? 
f 

TEE PRESIDENT: I cannot sce how he CQn toll us t hat. 

THE JUIXm ADVOCA'fE: It is Il LlB. tter f. ,1" you, but I m ve never foUnd a ny c ourt 
being convinced -by some gentleman ,") n oath swea ring -to t he move,:'1ents of' 
SODO other p erson f or a nmttor of ~vonty-four hours over a period of 
s everal clays. 

CAPT. FI~DEN: I vdll l eave that. 

CIU'T. CORBfiliLY: No ' questi ons. 

CAPT. NEAVE: No questions. 

CAPT. PHJLLIPS: No questions . 

LT. BOYD: No questio.ns. 

CllPT. MUJlIRO: No 'luestions. 

LT. JEDRzEJOWICZ: No questions. 
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Cross-exn.r.:.ined by COLONEL BL'>.CKHOUSE 
" 

QVtbere did you say you .went to get your training ? A. . About 1912. 

Q You t old us to-do.y t:ba t you W8D t in May of 1944 a nd that you were training. 
I wa nt to know where that vro.s ? A. A t o'imin East Prussia' called 
Prussian Holland. 

Q H.:)w long did you ' stay a t toot pb.ce ? A. Until 15th June • . 

Q Whore did you go on t he 15th Jun0 ? A. To Strutthof. 

Q Anothe r na;ne f or Strutthof is No.tZ\veiler, is not it? A. No , that is 
ano ther Strutthof th.':~t lies in tho vicinity of Danzig. 

Q Was tha t a concentration cru:rp t oo ? 11.0 Yos. 

Q What wer o your duties there ? ., ~. I inf eructed people there. 

Q When y~u l eft Dora V~Lat was yoUl~ rank ? A. Serjtmt. 

Q Were you a n Ob erscbarfuhrer wheL y ou r each ed Bclsen ? A. Yes. 

Q Who was the s eni or, you or Ha rtvr:Le ? A. Both equal. 

Q On this train in "lv-hich you l ef t Dord., Yfhat f ood. did the prisoners have? 
A. Each onc had a loaf of b r eD.d )r one a nd a ba lf loaves and one kilo 
of moat. 

Q Whe~e did. you 'go t a ll this Elea t f r oLl ? A. FrOi~l Dora . 

Q You wer e no t in the hab it of giving pris oners Doa t a t Dam, 'were you ? 
A. Each prisoner when h e l eft Dnr a go t t wo b l a nke ts, one l oaf of bread 
or one a nd. a half loaves of b r eD.li , a nd ono kilogram:le of moat. 

Q Did the J ews get a ny ? A. Everybody. 

Q Had you s one prisoners from the B:,mll er caE1ps round Dom on that trans- · 
port? A. I do not know; when I wa s ready ther e were two transports 
waiting there and I went iiYith th,; first one . Wha t happ ened with the 
second I do not kno,~ 

Q vVha't a rrangements wer e made f or \ ,nt er on the j ourney? A. The water 
situation , was verJ bad. We had nl) wat~r ourselves , a n u whenever we 
stop:?ed on our journey a nd tried to get sO;-.!e wate r fro'.l the houses 
round about the a nswer wa s a lwn.ys : "The r e is no water" beca use the 
waterwo~ks wer e destroyc~ 

Q The j ourney t ook f ive chys n.ccorC.ing t o you; :Ls the'), t ri@1t ? 
six days. We o.rrived on the 10th. 

A. Five or 

Q Did t he prisoners get any vra t er n. t a ll on tba t j ourney? A. When there 
vvas soue wat er in s ome ditche s they got that \vatcr, because we ourselv~s 
had to drink S QT,18 wa t or out of eli tches. 

Q Did the ·train stop once or twice by the nicle of' the ' road ? 
very often. 

li. It stoppe d 

Q How often did you alloy{ the prisorL0rs out of the tra in? A. rt wa s not 
rcJY job a nd I "W3.S not in chn.r go Obcrscba.rfuhrer Hartwie .ha.d the 
possibility t o l e t the pri30ne~s out. 

( 
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Q How often yrcr e t he prisonc.:rs alloYlcd out? 
for a long p8ri~d t hoy l eft the: train. 

A. When we s topped anywhere 

Q How ma ny waggons wero there on t h e.; train ? A. I do not know. 

Q Ab out how lnany ? A. P er haps 35. 

Q How r~ny prisoners did you craD i nto each? A. They sat qUite nicely 
a nd c QI;£ortabl e , about 100 in each waggon, but they wer e double wa~ons 
so they could s it. 

Q And you ha d onc to yourself, clid you '? .A. Yes, with thc ins trl.lD.ents. 

Q Were the prisoners f ru:lished by t he tiJ":.le you [~ot ther e ? A. They wore 
very hungary, yos, but it was not our fault. It ,,'laS the f ault of the 
r a ilway, becaus e in Ber gsdorf there Vfu S f or each prisoner f ood, prepared -
750 grru:Ttues of b r ead , 250 g :r:UDLIC S of s a usage, a nd 100 g;r'a.1Llcs of butter, 
but we did not wait s o th[:1. t the: f uod could not lle G3.s trJiJbuted, a nd the 
whole l ot wont back to Neuengffi.lDC; concent ration Cal:lp. 

Q How Tilany SS Llen had you on the tr9..in? 

Q ,TI1en t he tra in s t opped what preca utions di d you t a ke t o see the prisoners 
did 'not escape? A. In each 'flaggon the r e wer e f our SS LlGn a nd they 
vrer e res ponsible f or their pris0n or s , a nd when the prisoners l eft there 
yr.:ts [' ch".:i.:c· , 'f' :~s 2,u.'I.: cl s :;:,lUt r ound tl10 tra i n. 

Q Wc.:re you a nd Hartwie trie two s enior ncn ':,n the train? A .. The r e ' was 
still a nother Haupscharfuhrcr f r OLl a e;u8,r d cor.lpany a nd he was 
responsible for the s ecurity of t he .mol e t rain. I uo not r emember his 
!'1:.'Une . 

Q 

Q 

Q 

Why wa s not he in chargo if he "v/aa s eni ,~,r t o both Ha rtvrie a nd you? 
A. Becaus e he di d not belong t o our cOl:lma nd, a.nd the r.1a.n respcnsible 
for the t ransport wo..s de t a iled by our O,ID COLu.landant. This Haupscmr­
fuhrer diel no t belong t o that cor:J:".Jand. 

Do y ou reLlenDer on the third d.o.y c.ft cr you hlld started the trn.in pulling 
up a nd t h0 prisoners b e ing a llovlO(l out? ;'1. . I do no t r 01,ler."!ber tha't 
b ecaus e t he tra in stop}JCd vc r y often. It stopped eve ryday. 

Do you rclll(Liber sor,~e of t he ;1ri.3onor s b eginnill..g t o pick ca rrots up ? 
t 

A. I do not know. I have not Deen outside during all tIllS. 

Do you r CflleDb or a ny occa sion yrhen the p risoners did begin t o pick ca rrots 
up a t the r oa.dsido ? A. I clo not lmoy.. We vrere in the middle of the 
road a nd the r e wer e no ca rrot s ther e a t a ll. Tha t ts q~te clear. There 
wero no ca ITOts. 

Q I suggest t o you tha t on the third c1:.ly when SOLlC of those starving 
pri s oners tried to p ick 3 0::10 carrots by the s ide of the railway you shot 
one of then a nd kille cl hiLl? A. No , that is , no t true , b ecause on the 
thilrd day they canno t ba vD been ver y hungary, b eCcTlise. they s till bad s orile 
brea d l eft froD their onc loa f or one a nd a half l oaves, a na. t hey must 
have still had. some moat l eft. Apa.rt froi:l t hat, it "vas ne ver my habit 
t o s hoot prisoner s who wer e without weapons. 

Q Do you r eDerliliBr Z8.l110 Ski. on the t ransport? i~. I do not know Zrunoski, and 
it is hardly b elievabl e that Zamoski V'lD.S on the transport with me, because 

.he was in b l ock number 69. 

6. 
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Q Do you r onemb cr o.ny prisoner ccu ing a nd a sking you for wa tor? A. I 

remo"loer Yilfl.ny 'l)risoners asking ,-le for wat er a nd I gave ther.l 'wa ter - even 

hot w[\. t or - beco.use I a sked the engine driver f or some ,\V:..1. tor and tba t ' is 

the only thing tha t I Eot - hot Yvat e r - a nd I distributed a s "'.meh as I 

could get. 

Q Qui t e a l o t of prisoners di e d Oll that journey, d id not they? A. No , 

only very few. ' 

Q Wh.'1- t is your i (ka of very fml '? 

sta tion ' a nothe r. tra nsport of 1700 WO;:ie!l j ohecl us and they had. a lready . 

sDme ucad. Then Hartwie told ;';\,.; th:t tat a s ta tion SOTtle o ther dead 

l)risoncrs were lying a nc1 thcy lJ e}.onged 0..130 t o ano ther transport whieh 

I 

ho htl.d t o 'r ec e i ve 'with ours . 

Q People were dying oa 0.11 these t ro.nsports 'Ncre they? A. Well, now and 

a gain peopl e I.". ie;d, yes, t hat is true ; but out of our trclnsport consisting 

of about 5,000 prisonors, 42 J:; .. ad died. 

Q Was your t rn.nsl)Ort o.bout 5,000 ? , 1\.. Yes, al)proXlJ7la.tcly 5,000. 

Q If you 00('., ab out 35 trucks and y ,'u took onc; f or yourself, you must have 

h:td an awful j ob t o dlstribute t hc others nt 100 a truck, had not you? 

A. The 1 700 WOD cn C81:1e a lroad.;y '. ri th their O'iffi train, in their own 

-waggons 

Q You r OY.1ornber when you a rrived. a t the sto.tion tlt Bergen-Belsen? A • . Yes. 

Q Wer e t he prisoners paraded in hundreds ? A. I do not know. Tha.twv..s 

not 1'\Y duty. Th2.t WclS the lluty of Ho.rtw:i.e. 

Q You wer e thero; you could s ce wh:" t was ha~·ypcrlil1.g, could not you ?\ A. I 

unloa ded my own 'iiUggon o.nu took "w bicycle and went. 
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Q There were some btcycles on thh: train, were there? 
bicycle. , 

.. >I '" t .. , , :. 

A I had my ovm 

Q When you got to the 's tation t her e WOre niles of carrots just on the other 
side of the line , were t here not ? A I do not know. 

Q Do you ro;ne~,ber No. 14, Schmi tz ? 

Q Was he on t hat transport ? A I do not know. 

Q HG to;Ld Us that the r e we r e piles of ca rrots t he r e on thQ ·f a r s ide of the lino ' 
"is that right ? A I t i s po;~,\ iblc ; I do not know, 

Q Did you not go ' up wi t ll the prison.; rs to the camp? A I took roy bicycle 
and WGnt to t he st a tion because J wanted to know how to got to NOU()l1grurme, 
because Yr.y intention was to go J'rom l'Tc:ucngammc tp Berlin • 

• Q But wore you not in th e l east intl;r cBted in t he wolfa r e of t he prison(,rs ? 
A I had not hing to do either with the :i:; r annport or with the priso11e;rs ; that 
1Nas ' not Tny job, so therefore I ViL.:'. not inte r es ted. ' 

Q But you had been looking a f t c;r the prisoners , had YO !l not, because yO\,l were 
t he kind man who went to th E; on ,::;::l.:10 drive r a nd gotthc hot wa ter for them? 
A Y8S . They asked :ne whcthur I could gut them s ome wat er, so I got tho:::t 
the hot water. I sc.id: "viTdl, that is , 11 I c&n ge1{", so they 'were quite 
sati sfied and drank this hot v[c1. t c r ;,_nc3. put s ome salt in it. 

T}lE JUrGE ADVOCATE : Colonel Dackhou~', c, 'would it worry YO'.l to quostion hi..ll o.bout 
t h i s hot water out of t ho eng ine ·bCC8.'.l 3e it r a ther intrigues mo. Would you 
ask I him to givo Fi Cl.emonst r ation i: \ 'NDrds as to havy it WD.[, cl.one ? 

COLONEL BACKHOUSE: Yes. (To the -."T.i 'c ness): Can you u:x:plain t o the Court how 
you got this hot ;'tat or O'.lt of tho engi ne ? A I y r Oi1t to the: engine driver 
and , told hi'll that 1 noedGd 30:110 W.~·lto r for drinking , s o 1jc said: "1 have no 
water for drinking, but i f you like 1 vfill l et you have some hot water", so I 
said:· "All right , it is bott or t l!O.n nothing", so he turned on the t ap inside 
the en g;inc and then t hat i s how I got some hot wa ter. 

Q lftlhe.t dio., you put it in ? A I D 0. s:ma ll cont ainer, containing about 8 to 
1 0 li tre s ; a . s art 0 f s:nal]. bucket . 

" 

Q Whore did t he engine get the wD.iJr from on this six day journey if there VIM 

no .. wa t er? A On the r ailwo.y ;Jtatiol1s , boccLUse wheneve r an engine was 
exchanged then the new engine was ready, includine water of course. 

Q Why did you not get wa ter for the pris one r s t hen ? A No, that was not 
pos s ible, b eca use the a'1lount of VI.~)t er V.f3.S v ery small, even at the railwoy 
st <- tions, although t hey had all t hc;)ir ovvn 'Nat er 'ttorks, so that even the 
nocessC'"ry ELTflo'.mt f or e ngines v~as difficult t o he obta:i,ned. 

Q Hov; 1,\ any rivqrs and st reams did you pa ss on this journEY? \ A Very !l1D.UY. 

Q ' Then why on e arth ·. did you · not s t '.Yp t WJ tro.L:1 o.nd get S0110 Wc;.tcr for thes e 
,people who wer e dying f rom thirst ? A Thflt i s impcsdble, t hat anybody 

Q 

.Q 

should s top the train, boc [tuSC th • .; engine driver has his own timo t able :cnd 
it i s LTfipossible tho. t so~cbody ;Jhould s imp1.y interfere vdth tho.t and tell 
h iDl t o stop. 

But this train kept on s t opping. Another stop would not make any 
.differ ence, would it ? A If the train st opped in the neighbourhood of . 
a ditch or f'. small· river, of cours e we fe tched wut r]r, but nost of the "tl1Ile 
the train stopped e11tiroly in t he open vihere wC clid not fina anythi~ at all. 

Let us coma to the ti.;;:o wl.1.cn you got t o BGlsen s t ation. I suggest to you 
that when you arriv.ed at that station your starving prisoners broke across 

8. 
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t he line: and tri.od t o ge t e.t tha t p H .e; of carrots ? A I do no t know. 
I told y ou already I do not know v/h.:: thcr thoro wore piles of carrots or not . 

Q And t hat y ou pullcdout y our pi s t ol and shot and wounded onc o f them in the 
l eg ? A I do not know anythinG ab out it. I was in c ha r ge evory day ::)f' 
8,000 pris c:>110 r s . I f I vra ntcd t o bc o..t anybody or shoot .anybody I W')uld hav e 
had plenty of opportunity t::) do t ha t . 

Q Well, I a':i goina to suggos t t o yO I~ t h[tt y::>u not only h ad t hc opportunity~ . but 
you t ook it. IVhLn wer o you i n char ge ::)f these 8 , 000 prisoner s ? 
A FroYJ1 Sel't ell:bvr, 1944-, until Apr il, 19L~5 . 

Q Wa s t hat whe n you were , a t Dora or Hordhaus cn ? A Nordhausen. 
, 

Q You vre re i n char ge of 8 ,GOO prisoners . ? A Yes . 

QThen v1hy did y ou t oll t he Court y ::) u had nothiI\.'2; t o 0.0 with t he CD..'TIp, that y our 
duties . worc r cqui"' :i,.tioning 8.nd D.dmi;:-ustering ;:'1'lchinory? (The witness ;-; tG.rts 
t ::) answer i n GOY'::1c n ). ThB.t is not en a nswer a t a ll -1;0 the question I asked 
you. Whgt I want t o Y-now i s why di d Y8U t ell t he Court t hat y::)u he,d. nothing 
t o do vrit h the cGlIlp, t hat y~")ur dutius wero requisitioning and acl'ninistoring 
:nac hinvry, Llld n ::)w you t ell us yOl). vro rc i n f£~ct in cha r ge of 8, 000 prisone r s 
whom y ou c .:)uld have shot <me. b eat en if you wanted t o . A They wore 
lfnrking in t he mines anu. at the s.& ; 'e t:L'n8 l earning the j ob. (The Interpre ter: 
Tho -idtness enurr..e r a tcd. D.11, 2, 000 ;'::'::ld B.1 2 , 2, 500 ::'..Dd so on until he C D.."':1C 

to 8,000). 

Q And YCJu we r o in ch ('\r r, r; of them ? 
t o use t he mach iHl:Js . 

A I was in chargo in i ns tructi.nr; ther:l 

Q I s ugges t b y ou that y our or iQi ncLl 0vidcmc e t o· t he Court t ho.t you wero in 
char ge of r equisiti oning and a d:-:u nistra t ine the ,!lachines and had I!othiL[; to 
do with the C D..'Tlp WD.S a dclib E:rate ; .ttc;imt t o I:us l e ad tho Court ? 
A ~~ opini8n i s that I hag. not hin,c: to do with the c ar.lp or vlith Iunythi ng 
i ns i de the c a"'TIp. 

Q Let us CO!n6 b ack t <) ]3 Gr c en-Bel s en ;.'.[~ain. Who did y ou r eport to when you 
got up t o the c t::l...'1lP ? 1.. Not a t 0.11, becaus e :t!y fjupvrior au thority is in 
Berlin. 

Q Wh8 did you r cpo?"t t o when you go t up t o the CXJp ? A I reported to 
Obc r s turJ'lf'uhrcr lIo(; ssler who wa s :11,Y superior offi cer. 

Q He put you i n cha r :3e ::)f scver.::cl blo~ks , did he not? 
. fuhrer Hartwic did tha t . 

A No , Obersohar-

Q Did h e not put y ou i n cha r ge of s LJvc:L'al b lock s , including b l ock 87 ? A No. 

Q And di d he not tell y o'.] to eo roun(j. t he blocks o.nd sec t hat everything \vas 
a ll right ? A 1\"o . 

Q Q Le t :ne remind you· ')f whc.t he said hiJ:lSelf when he C& ,10 cmd [,2_v e evidence 
in t he vrl tne s s b oy.. "1 kep t t h i s .. a n , No. 1 9, ·with ; :10 and. Go.v e him t he 
order s t o so c t hat evc rythi ns s ho ul d b o all right round t he b locks , tha t ho 
sh::}"'.lld s ee t c> it that cV0r ythinr;: VTr ::; 0.11 r i Ght". Tha t is D-t 1)age 21 of 
volu.'11C 22. Do. y ou r eJae:.lb er your bvm c ounsel putting this t o h:Lra: "It has 
been st ilt ed i n ev idence t hat t h i " !non wc-.s i n charge of block 87; i s th8.t 
correct", and t he answer WD-S: '110 ; ,n s in c he.r g e not only of on e s ingle b l ock; 
he wa s . respons ible fo r sev era l blocks" ? A I know- tha t Hoes s ler said i t~ 
but it is wrong. 

Q Where did y ou report t o Hoess l e r ? A I did not repor t qyself. It was 
Hartw;J.c who r 0ported t he whol e t ran3port and r eported my presenc e as well. 
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Q But you were no t vvi t h t hem - you h eLd 2:ono off on y 'Jur b i cycle ? 
A Whe n I re t ur ned t'J t he C 21:lp , 

Q As a ~natte r of i'.s..ct, Hooss l e r !":l(J.t YelU atthu s tation di d he; no t ? 
A L hav e not s eon IOGss l cr a t t he station. 

Cd WQS not onc of t he firs t j obs t hat Y'JU hQd to del who:, YCJ1.1 gel t t d the ca':lp 
t o put y our l:l(;n into your four blocks ? A No. Ha rvwlc tol d De t h[l.t he 

Q 

is now Rapport fli lr cr [Lno. he; is rcs pons i b L , f or t he distr ibution of t he b l ocks •. · 
I wou l d b o put in cha r ge ::;1' 88, Bcntvv:i.ck V{C) uld be put in chQr ge of 87 and -
I , do not kn:)w - l( eLUf'mD.l l· or RiohtOl~ of' b lock 85. . . 

Lot me re:rnind you cn~ what Hocssl cr, y. ou r Co::nandin(f Officl;r i-;ai d ab out i t. ,. h Cl , 

''W on Co.lesso",· : i r L'l t 2.r rive:d ,et Bc l sen ¥ri th his tra :{Jsport, was onc of hi s 
j obs- t o se e hi:::.; !:lc n into B. rJ l ock? ( A) Yo.s ; t hey were divicled into 
several .b l oclGc; ; I b rj liov 8 four ll

, Now l ot ;.10 r e::n.ind. you of vihlc;.t Zcunoski 
said: liO n ;l.rrivc~l D.t ' JE' l sen 'NC w\;r e d Gt :.:d l ed t :)our V2.rious b l ocks . 
Cn.l osson s t '')Cld a t t he d:)o r of ::-01 b lock Ilnd b eat p risone r s , who ,wara too 
Y(eak t o m.ov e qUickl y , vri th a niX'oAl bar", Did y ou sta.nd a t the door of the 
blClck, .t o bogin with, put tinE; poop l c in? (The \vi tne:ss s t a rt s t D D.nswer 
i n Gcrr:v:m). I D..':Tl n~)t D. ,;k ing you ,,,b ou t t h e numb er of the b lock. I am 
asking y ')u; Did y~)u J r did yQU ;1Gt stan<l c.t t he dQor of the b l ock socinr, 
mon in ? A N') . 

Q He goes on. t Q s ay: uM;:\JJ.,Y Y..leD f elJ. dovm ond I knovr t hat SO::18 of' t hcm were.so 
serious l y 'Lnjured t hll t t hey h ll Cl. t~J be tDkc n t o hospi t Ql t he next r;!.ornirlg ". 

Q 

A He s ays a l so that t he r e wore SOI:1e nurses in t he hospi tal ----

Never ;Jind .whllt he a l so says ~ · 71f'tt I want to know is t h i s . 
f 8.ct t ho.t ,'} l ot of t hese ~lcn were tnkon t o h02pit8.l ? A 

Is it not a 
I do nQtknmv. 

Q Do y ou ror,1omber G. 8"'D called Leibl Maidnl1 ? A No , 

Q I put it to y ou t ho.i; you killed hLTI t hat day by h i ttill,'; hi.""!l on the head ,vi th 
an iron bQr ? j\. I wou l d not drco.m of hi tting .s o~~·lcboc1y vii t ll a n iron bQr. 

Q DJ you re~e~ilicr Gut ermann ? "I. I do not know h i 'Il. 

Q 

Q 

Q 

Ho Wi ~'S with Za'1loski nnd say s preci 3 cly thc S a:-1G thing. N')w you t ol d us you , 
spent: the next t ·wo or thruo days [, 'Ji l1fj; fo r walks . Do you really ::loan that ? 
i. N:Jbody Vv" as .',b 18 t o dve me mw S0 rt of j 01)13 bec .:'_u sC' I did not bel ong t o 
;the t co;pa rJ.,Y c.. t a ll, s~ nobo dy hr~cl opportunity t o d ot Qil ;:.\c t'J ,'lnytni ng , 

Kr D':-!lCr comc1 Hoe s s l or wer e so short :.rE ::non t hey we r e t ryinG; t o borr~w tho:-.~, 

wor e t h cy not? A N~) , Wc had S0 3 :lClrJ.,Y S, S. people t l18.t ell1 the 12th or 
13th we had t o ::5 cmd the!:'l D.way; c. big pt:Tt of t hc':Tl hLd t o be sent FlYiO;j. 

Evc n when t he Briti sh troops arrived , quit e [L nunbor of thesc S . S. ::Ion, fo r 
ins t n.l1Co, :Bentwick , KaufT::2.n a.nd Ri c h t e:!.', I (10 not know eT!. t heir m.l!Jes , t hoy 
e scapod ; ev en when t he Brit i sh t r oops Drrivc<l a lready t hey s till escaped. 

Were you not told by HOGssler t Cl tilly the r oads up bef or e , bocC!.1:lsc ho wn.rrt cd 
t h.3 p l a ce cle an y.ihen the Briti sh troops a rrived ? . A The r OD-d B Vlore clc:::LI1. 

That WilS not what I Clskcd Y"J'J.. Worc y ou t o l d by Hoess ler t o see t ho.t t he 
-piac e iVQS tidio d up " net tlla t t he pL'pcr which Was lying o.bout · flnd so on" vras 
clc2ned up, cl ea red av'fc.y ? A No. 

Q Then ev eryt hing -100881 0 r has t () Id u s fluOUt y ou is untrue , · lS it ? 

Q 

A I do not Im ow. 

A Yes. 

Lnd f i c. y 'Ju not g~") into b l oc k 87 ':' .lld or der flll the J ews ' t o . go ~utsidc [1.l1d 
s t a rt cleani ns up the r OD-d ? A I said. a lready t hd I h['.d nothing t o 
do with b l oc k 87 ; that wt:.'3 under t h e .co!l);;12.nd of Ober s charfuhrer Bent-wick. 
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Q hIlL did y ou not s t nl1d by the door and a s the Prisollers went out you beat the:::! 
on the head and t he b ody VQth your stick? A I have not been in block 87, 
t hat 'was not ;:y r esponsibility. 

Q Did y ou behave in t h i s way in b lock 88 ? A I have not boaten ru1Yboqy in 
block 88. I do, not know who was b en.ting and I do not know where, but nobody 
in b l ock 88 was 'beat en. 

Q You kept c. b r oobstiek; where was t hat ? A I do not call t h['ct beating 
o.t c,ll. I t o I d thc:~ to sweep the plae c und I jus t hit tho:c1 'fr.i_ 'th a broolcstick 
CJ.l1d t hey l o.ughcd o.b out it. 

Q What da y ou c all be a t i ng ? A I call i t beo.ting if he Eo t s SOr:1e In.:::.rks , 
e ithe r if ho hD: s a w:mnd or h2..", some bruis es . 

Q Th2.t is vvhat you 0 211 2, beating in a c oncentr2..tion C 3..':Tp , is it? A Yes , 

Q The in.st~E::nt s yo '). sew you br::>ught ¥p vii t h Y::)U fr::>c.l Norclhausen, WQre they-
surveying i ns tr"J.ncnt s ? A Compa sses t'..J.'1cl levelling ins trIL:1cnt s and so on,. 

Q Had you S0"10 stool l evollil1g r ods 2::nnss t t hem ? - Had you SOI:l0 s tool roC:a ? 
A Yes. 

Q Lot us put it 30r e sL~ly . 
,YC:m br::>ught up -with you? 

Eacl you not l3::>t -et s teed rod .':J...~onDst t he things 
A No . 

Q Arc y ou sure you had not got one in your hQnd whe n you a t up ta the b look 
to put t ho pri::;onors i n ? A No . 

C..A:PTAIN BRO'JN: No re-eJC.;'1.rn:i. :n.-'). tion. 

THE. JUDGE ADVOCATE: Cc,l e s son, if I uncler stand t h i s journey oorrectly, 3,500 ;nei1 
ru.::.ei. t o b e :n:JV cd -by trCti n ov er fiv e days ; i s t hat right ? A I do n-:.lt know. 
We ::lust have been r;lore , t)e o8.u se ' wc sto.rted in Dor a l'Ii th 2, 900 o.n(~ t hen another 
trans port of 1,700 C 2..':10 f.nd c~ third s:-:k-'lller tral1Sport. Where t he thircl CD..>:10 

fro!:! I do not kn8w. 

Q H::lVr r:u::..ny PQoplc do you say t ho r o we re OD t he tra in? A I d:) n ot lG10W 
exactly the D1.L':1ber, but certainly TIora t ho.n 4,600, b e c ause o.par t fro::l t hese 
a few snD.ll e r tra nsports j oined us. 

Q Were t hey in c l osed t~Jcks or open t rucks ? A Those trJcks of our 
transport wer e O P ",l1 .::md the trucks wi th t he 1, 700 women 'were closed truoks . 
They were ca vorcd wit h c anvas . 

Q You so.y 42 cloecl ::)11 tho j ourney y ou t h i rik ? 
'-lllder s t a nd - 42 when we arrived i n Ber Gen. 

AYes , t hat i s what I 

Q 'Yh["t W8.S ' c auG i ng their (lea t lls , do you think ? 1-, I do l10t know. 
night ho.vc oeen sick v:hCll they boar ded t he tra i ns . 

They 

Q Out of the' transport you -st2.rted wit h yourseJ.f thoy were pretty fit Don, vrero 
they not ? A The :'''B. j or i ty of t hC:-.l were fit nen. 

Q J,.nd hovr!'.1any of t hos e (li ed. on t his cO:-1par a tively short j ourney c)f fiv o dc::ys ? 
A I do ne t know. 

Q You do not t h ink t hd tJ l ose 42 peop l e in a j ourney of t hat kil1d i s 
cn. .. 'i;raorclil1£..ry a t all? A I f t hey b Glongocl t o D\Y transport t hat v1fOuld 
b e a v ery big nu:Ubcr i ndeed, but as I said befor e t hey did not l)ol ons to 
qv transports cnd I hcD.rc. from Hartwio tha t n t 0. station were loa ded als o 
a f0vr bodies . 
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Q Do I under stand you to be t Glling the Court that ,vhen so::wbody d i ed on this 
j ourney y:::m carricc1. the corpse with'YOU to D~'1.? Ts that wha t you s-o.y ?', 
A Yes , we t ook all .the b :)die s with us . 

Q Why do Y8U. want t o t c..l:c t he dead a nd the living t og ether on a j ourney of five 
days ? A Wc c :Juld. not l e:we t he boc.i es just on t he open road or on the 
r ails . 

Q And when sO::1.ebody died, vvhat happene d b t he body, was it Doved t o SODO 
pa rticula r waGgon on the tro.in, ar ViaS it jus t 10 ft 1;vi t h t he li vinf, in t he 
plac o where it C:ied ? j, No, they wore ~(laved into ·o.~10thG ¥i£:.ggon . 

'Q So if you be Mcurn te y ou o.rrived o.t Bolsen vri t h a truck fl1.ll of dead peopl e ; 
i s that right? A I ' . .mdcrs tancl tha t there were 11-2. 

Q Who had occupi ed this wass on t hat you used for t ho cJ.oaQ bC18rc y~)U fillud. it 
up vvi t h t he 42 unfortunate people whC! hoiL died on the j ourney? 
A Nobody. That W2..S an open truck cC)vered v-n. tll CDnVo.S. 

Q Did you ovor fee l yvorriecl as t o whether, when Y0'.l t,ot to Bel ::mr., s03ebody 
J:Ji;:-~ht ask why so ::1D.ny 0.S 42 poap le h<.,d died. ::m this j ourney, or did you f (;.ol 
t hat when you go t there: nobody would bother at all c,nd it really did not 
Elatter ::md y ou hau no responsibli ty Cl t 2J.l ? A That W2.S the duty of 
the :-Jan in cho.rgo of' t he transport, Ha rtYQo , and he , I beli e-'Vc , o..l s o 
reportod t hat whon we a rrivecl, t he number of' t he d e M , tlnd theywero I Daded 
into trucks. . 

Q .Arc y ou a n ol d sold.ier ? 

Q Arc you Iauch ~nore of :::. soldier t ho..ll t he :.lan Hartwie ? A I do not k..'1.01Y 

about HClrtwie , but I ho-v c b een a soldier in 191 2 a nd. I hElVO t D.l:en part in the 
l o..s t W8I . 

Q And. did the :nan 1"11\0 W9.£J in cha r ge 8f the train novel!:" C03C and 2..sk you wha t 
you thoup·ht y ou o'.l[!;h t t o <b 2..bout it to stop these deaths iNhich were occurring 
on this journey ? 1.. No , Hnrtwio neve r asked me. 

'l'HE P RESIDEl'iIT : You hav e t old us 2.bout t he trnin r at i ons . You s::1.i o. t hat the r e 
was one t o on~ and. . <'l. qua r t e r l oaves ·.) f brec-.d and 0. kilo of !::10a t , ,-,n ei t ho.t in 
adcli tion a t, . I think., BerSsdorf t her e was sO::le butt er .:cnd SOli;e bread y ou sho"Llld. 
have been issued with and SOT.1C. ~oro Deat. Can you el-.'}>lain why thJs~ train 
r a tions 8.re S 'J ~uch s uperior to t he r a tions wo havlS be en t Cl l d c.bout th~ t 
wer e i ssued in concentra tio:l camps? 
A 1';.11 ':J f' u s , t he soldiers c'.nd t he "9riscmers , receivecl exactly t he sane 
r a tions when wc l eft the ca'n:rp , and then a ftcT tV'lD or three dc.ys , 'J f cours e , 
we had nothing to e t c..:.<1d ;:uybe poople k~ew t hat we were h' . .mE~I"Y. Thi::-
pl ac e which I ;lentioned is o.bout 7 kilo!':le tres from Neuengc.:~e , so wben wc 
sto:[)ped thoro Har tv.d.e, who was in char Ge of the tr:':U1..sport, vrent t o the cx:rp 
Clnd t ol d t he Co:!r.la.ndant [\bo'.lt our fo C) (l situation and as ::" r esult these 
r a tions wero t hcn .. sent . 

Q Thc.t i s not an ansvre r t o r.w questior... a t all. lli{hat I want to know is t}1:i.s . 
Can ,you eritplB.in why these train r a tions o.nd t he r a tion tha t wo.s wc..iting 
for the, _pri "onor s vrClS on such a far higher. sC2.1e t hen t he norr-ra.l ra tioD 
issued in conc01rtration. c renps ? 
A Because our j O'.lrney should hrwc t d<:on a nother t V'{O or U lr co dews until 
wo a Tl."ived in Ber[~ e:O-B..elsen. 

A :MEvIBER OF TI-rE COURT : You sai d tha t ;: t Dor a or Nordllflus en y ou were responsible 
for, D.'1lo:ngs t·other t hings , instruc ting 8, 000 prisoners in t he u s e of 
r:}.".chinery. Wha t kin(l of :-rnchincry vr~1.8 -thc.t. (The witness c;avc c.n o.nswer 
in GerTIl.an) . 
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THE INTERPRETER: I 2..:."1 [',frnid I pan..'10t understand. 

CO'LO'NEL BL.CKHO'US E: 1 think it may hel]) if he wore asked: Was, jt nining 
:'Jachinory ? 

~Thc qu estion wn s put to the witness). 

THE 'ffITNESS: Yes. 

THE IvD vIBRFI.: H[td you any particular qualifications ' for t03,chirl.['; pooplo ? 
.A. Yes , t h a t i s =lY :pr-Jfos,'3ion. 

THE PRES]J)ENT : HavQ y ou :Jn y ques tions to a s k cm th[tt" c aptain BrOV'!}:l. 

C1~PTAIN BRO'VifN: I would. like to clear up the question of the r!' .. tions • .. 
TEE PRESID::::1ff: Yes ~ 

CLPl'AI N BRO\VN: vro r e the r ations o.t l\lc)rdhausen bo tter t han , in other 

cC'lncontration c3n ps ? 

What t huy Got iYl ' t he caJnp I del not knovT, but in adc.i tion tQ their 
I 

nQr:'1Fl.l ro.t i Qns t hey Eo t f"'£'ClTIl t he W'Ork s where t hey were working the 

felllovd ns adm tiona l r ations per mont h : 650' g r o..l::L'nOS so.usage or :::te::tt; 

200' gr 2...-:rnes ;:lor r,o.rine ; 125 g rlJ..'nY:J.E:S Buttor; 250 z raTZIles rice, .'.Cnd ab::n).t 

500 g raY:l8S of porrid[;e a n Cl three k ilogra--:Y,1es of b roacl per 'we ek.' But 

t hat was only for t hose who '1vore uH(lerground, "Lnd t hat was for hG8.V'J 

"10rkers. 

( The o.ccused l e2.vGs the pla ce fro:~ 

which he ho.s given his evidence). 

13. 

• 

www.bergenbelsen.co.uk



i' 

Cl.Pr. BROWN: The last aCGU ScC "hoLl I r~prGscnt is No. 21, Karl Egersdorf. 
This ~ .,an is clmr2;cc.. on the Bels en ch!lrge . only , and I propose tp put hiJ.-:l 
in the b ox to ,:;ive his evidence. 

J'hc Accusoc~ KL.RL EGER§DOR1!~ takes his stand at the place 
from -wh ich the other vritneDses have given their evidence 
and, having be cn Guly sworn~ is exarl1ined by CAPl'. BROWN 
as follows: . 

Q. What is your f ull ll.:ll".le? A. Karl B~ersdorf. 

Q. W'here a nd, when wore you b o:cn? A~ 20th July 1902 ~n Rosenoach. 

Q. I 0elieveY'Ju a r c I7la.rrieu a nd have onc child. 

THE .JOIXi.E ADVOCi:;'TE : Whore is Rosenbach? 
have ono child. 

A. In Bavaria. I aLl :narricd and 
\ 

C~';P'1'. BR01iVN : Were you a mc;'.1b c r of the Bavarial~ Peopl e 's Pa rty, vlhich is a 
Ca tho:).ic ' J.1OV'ODE-mt? Ju Yes. 

Q. W~1on did you join thc s . S.? A. 0:':1 the 30th March 1941. 

Q. , 'iiThero ,did you r.!P then? A. 1'0 il.usch,vi tz. 

Q. Did. you ' vvish . to j o in the S. S. of t h e concontm tion, carol}) service? A. No , 
"'faS conscripted. 

Q. Vf.nich caErp vie re you in Ct t ~·~u.s chwi tz? ",d. .• Ausch-vT.itz No.i. 
Q. 'Ithat Was your j ob there? A. Ii'orkin:;<; in the cool<:house. 

l~ . When G.iSt you l uavo J'i..us ch-ri tz? 11.. 2113 t January 1945. 

Q. When di d you n.rrivc i n Bclsen? 1',.. I cannot tell exactly; -the 7th or 8th 
ilpril 1945. 

Q. Hov{ were you cDploycC: a t Belson? L . I was sent to the food storo as an 
assistant~ 

I 

Q. Of vvha tdid the f oot: s t oro CO Y'lsis t? 
other foo(~stuffs. 

il.. There WiJ_ S brea.d, 'moat, flour and 

Q. l .. nel 'lim.s the vegetable s to r u :;nrt. of tbe SaI.1C s t ore? 
about · 300 ~_!0 tres 8..YI-2_y fromi t. 

A. No, that was 

CliPI'. BROVVN: I p ropose to refer to .Affi,lavit No.1, Exhi bit 16. (To the witness) 
You ha ve s een th~ affieavi t of DoY.'a "j.ualeh? "'L. Yos. 

Q. Arid. the s'tatcmont toot in April in Bulsen you shot a , lilll1gari an girl? 
A. I bD..ve seem ,that. 

Q. VIha t have you to say about tba t? .i\.. It is not true. 

Q. Was there a giri ca llecl Dara o;:,1~')loycd in your store's? 1.e Yes. 

Q. Diu she come from SalOnika? A. Yes . 

Q. Do you thir1k that may be the s'amc s irl has ,',:ado that statement? 
think so. 

A. Yes; I 

Q. What Elakes you think tha t? 
d:J..Sli.llSSe d her. 

1... The girl cliel not work a nd therefore I 

Q. When Lld you diSl:1iss her? A. TV-fO <la.ys before the British :troops , arrived.. 

. Q. Did you ever shoot anyon0? A. No. 
14. 
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Q. Did you over ili troa t a ny of the i')risoncrs? A. Not asin3~G onc. 

CllPT. BRm\1IT : I now propose to a sk s one questions with r ezard to the accused 
Mo. these (To the "iri tncss) Where did you sleep at Bolsen? A. In the 
bathhouse. 

Q. Was the a ccused Ha th(.s o;npl oy ocl i n the ba t:b.J10use? A. Yes. 

Q. Can you say frxa y our o-,-m kn0wledge tho. t h e vvas ei.lplvyed in the bathhouse 
ri£:;L1.t up t o the 15tl1 April? 

COL. :3ACIQrOUSE: Tha t is very lea ding. 

C.APT. BROW}T: I a::;l crOSS- 0x.:l:,lining. 

COL. B.1.C~iliOUSE: You C~.U:lllot cross-cxru~lin(; your oym witness. 

TFE J1ITGE .:illVOC; .. 'r E: You canno t cross-oxamino soauboc1y you arc a'/~0(;aring for. 
I 

Tlmt is quite ir.1poss i bl c . 
, 

'rEE PRESIDENf : You ca n fra~.1c y our qU03 tion differently" not as Q l eading 
question. 

C"iPT. BROWN: Do you knoH vrhcn he cea sed to be eLT910yed in the bathhouse? 
A. I do no t know. 

Q. Do you know if h e was still v.<Hoyod there when the Bri tish arrived? 
A. He Vias there in tne nornin:~ a lld at niGh t. 

Cj~. BROIVN: Tha t concluu(;s "w cxo.mim tion. 

(The ra~~ining defending officers d~ not dosire to cross­
eXaJ:ri.nc: t h i s witness) 

Cross-exarlined by COL. B~CIJ~OUS~. 

{~. You vrere a t Ausc];.witz a lto[,;e th8r fo r nearly f our yea rs; is \that rieht? 
iu Yes . 

Q. -#11ieh cookhouse vrere you working in? A. Thore was only onc kitchcn in 
Auschwitz No.1. 

Q. Then -,I'hcre did y ou 80 in JanuB.TiJ 194-5? ii .• To Belsen. 

Q. In Januo.TiJ 19~-5? A. -:fe vror e on our way In th a coluL1l1 of truck::>; we were 
s ent to Berlin first a nd then 'ire wont t o Bc;: l scm. 

'C}. \Yher0 clid., you s -' c nc1 t he tLle ·be tween 21 st January and. 7th or 8th April? 
""l.. 1!+ c1.1.ys YfO spent in Lytch t e lvrerclt and. five yrc eks Y{e were in Rcichcnbcr.e;. 

Q. ~0~yvlhcrc e lso? A. No . 

Q. You [tre Cl f cv{ 'ireeks short , but I do.reso.y your time is not v c:; ry accurate • . 
Are you sure you c.i d no t ge t t o Bel son earlier? A. I cannot tell t he day 
exactly. 

Q. You have only aoooUflted for seven 'weoks from the 21 st J a nuary up to now. 
' li... Yes , b eoause it t ook us SOlJ.C tiDe with the trucks to r ea.ch these places. , 

Q. vTho ca.De "vi th you? 
another S S. Dan. 

A. -Ne v{crc t on trucks; in r,w truck" was D. driver and 

Q. Who was the other S. S. Eia n? 
in ·,ie illen. 

A. I do not knov{ his mL:e , because he stayed 

Q. 1iow· long did you ~ravcl -vvi th him.? ,... All the tiljle. 

Q. .And l1E)ver f ound out ,,'[hat his ne.;-;;c ·was? 
r cr,lemb er. 

11'). 

, 
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Q. Then when you a rri v o<l at Belsen were yau ill charge of the bread p9.rt of the 
s tares? A. Yes. 

Q. Whereabouts -were the foo C!.s t o res ? 
yre enterec. the CD.l~lp. 

A. The foods tore was the first hut a s 

Q. Was it the first hut on ~he l e:ft a s you went in? A. Yes, _ 

Q. i,nd. ther e wa~ a ve ry lar130 :p ilo of veec.tavles just by thc caL1p gate, was not 
. there? ;.... Yes. 

Q. Very , close to your bread store? 
v02;otable store. 

A. The bread s toro was also near the 

Q •. That i s what I was r~dhcr s u[o;s es ting, that the vegetable store ::md the bread 
store a r e quite closc t o each other, arc not they? A, Thoy were in on0 
block. 

Q. That is the bread s t ore o..n<l the vege t o.'b l e store? A. Yes. 

Q~ I thought you sa i c. i t -·.-~ns o..bout 300 n otres mvay when answering your ovm 
counsel. li .• The foods t or e a nd the vCGetabl e store. 

Q. I a;~l not following you. 
pla ce to the food store? 

Are you sayine the broad store is a different 
A. No , no t thc SaluC place. 

THE PRESIDENT: I think actually the answer to your question should have been 
y es. You sa id: "Are you s ayiJ.-.g they arc not the sam.e?", o..nd he said: "No, 
not the sru-,le place." 

COL. BACKHOUSE: You arc saying the bread store was not in the saDe place a s 
the food store, arc you? .\.. No , t hey a r e not in the sanc block. 

Q. But you were in cOOr eo of t hc b r ead store , were no t you? A. I was 
rcsponsi~le for the food stor e a~d the b r ead store was a part of the food 
store • . 

.8. I aB not a bit worried about the food. s t orE;. 
the b read store. 

Vlha t I am worryint; about is 

THE JUIXi-E ,,DVOCATE: l.iy no tu i s in a Duddle. What I have i s this: " 1' ... t Belsen 
I 'was cuploy8cl a t the f uod s t ore. The f ood store consisted of meat, flour 
and other f oollstuf'fs. The v02;etablc store vias about 300 ElGtrcS away and 
separate." 

COL. BACKHOUSE: Yes. 

THE JUIXj.E ADVOCf...TE: Wha t is he saying novt? 

OOL. BAOIiliOUSE: WOOt he is saying now is that the food store was not the SD.l.le 
place a s the b r ead store; tha t the bread store was close to the vegetable 
store, was in t he same b lock, and that he Y{a s in cbarze of both. ('ro the 
vvi triess) Of course y ou know toot Dora lJ.rJ.aleh said it ,JaS whils t she vro..s 
vmricing at the b r ead s to r e and you were wo:['1:::in2; at the Ve[';e t ab l o store she 
saw you slloot this ? erson J do not you? Do you knoW' that is WhH.t. ,she! ~Ai.c11 

ll. .• Yes, she said so. 

Q. L.nd you know that t hose t w':) stores arc i n the sD.lX~ b l oc!c , do not you? A. Yes . , 
8. Then why "vhen your c ounse l put t hat t o y ou (h d you say: "The vegetable store 

was 300 ~:lCtres av'lay froIL1 the f oods toro. " It vras quito .r.lislcading , vvas not 
it? i\.. Yes. 

Q. You wer e trying t o suggest to the court that this girl could not see you 
becmJ.so she was 300 me tres away, were not you? 

C.U'T. BR01rfN : I am afraid I DllS t ob j ect t o that ques tion. I d.id not get tha t 
~~press ion a t a ll. 

16. 
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THE JUI.X;E "illVOC.A'EE : Will you tell the court -wbat t..I::ie t o1;>j.ection is and then we 
will deal with it. 

Cl~. BROwTI: The p rosocutor s eows t o be putting it to the accused that h8 gave 
a cODple t e ly mi s l e0-ding a nswe r, and he sta rted by saying that it vras while 
the accus ed V{QS working; in the breau store tIn t this incident hap2.)cncd. 
What r~ppened was, the affidavit says she recognised the ~~n a s r~ving been 
in charge of the b r ead stor e , but that she saw 'h:L-a a l)pearing in the street 
near the ve:zetab l o stor:c. I do not sce that the prosecutor has got the 
right t o put it t o the a ccuse d. hw wa s trying to be oisloo.ding, beca use I 
(10 not think he was. 

COL. BACKHOUSE: Wha t I ara p erfectly entitled t o do is to suggest t o a yvitne ss 
that he is not t elling the truth a m1 is c1elibcratcly misleading. -Whether 
j'W f r i end t hinks so or not is neither here nor there. It i[~ a rl~ tter for 
the court t o decide . But if I ~:l [ping t o fl~ke the cOLI~1ent aft'e rwards I 
Dust rda ke the sugLbestion. 

THE JUL'GE iillVOCA'l'E : It i"ilisled rae on r.lY note, because I have it wrong. 

COL. RA.GKHOUSE : I t hink it is obvious it wa s raisloading , and I suggest it was 
delibcra'tc. If I aE) [3o ing to ma ke that cO:~lincnt later I must put it in 
cross-oxill-aination. 

THE PRESIDENT: I ar" perf ectly convincocl, unle ss there was CL mistake in the 
intcrPr eting , he ori ginally sa id t Int the vegcta-tl le store wa s 300 metres 
avray frOLl the f ood. store. 

COL. BACKHOUSE: Yes. 

THE PRESIDENT: And he t hen agree s the vc~etab le store ~md brcad stor e were 
in the s ame block, havinZ sai d t ha t t he food s t ore dealt with broad, 1.100. t 
a nll f lour. 

f ood 
.COL. BlI.CKHOUSE: Yes. He still said his/stor0 ViaS 300 n etrcs away and his 

bread de::?Etrt,;lent was in the vcgetau lc.; stor e , in the sarJO block. But vrhat I 
am putting is whe n he volunteered t he infOYhlB.tion that the b r oad store and 
f ood store '''{ere 300 metres CLJ?art he lcilew perfectly wc~l we ".rere ta:1Jdng . 
ab out the b r ca d store , a nd vro..s deliberately d isleadins the court, and he 
diel it with a view to Llisleadin[,; the court. . 

nm PRESIDENr: It was, of course, · a direct question that he was a sked. Hc 
did not volunteer tha. t info ITJ.a tion. 

(At the r eguGst of the court the shortha nd \Jri ter reads the 
following : !I Q. Hovr YlGre you ci.pl oyeel a t Belsen? A. I wa s 
s ent t o the f ood. store a s a n a ss :Lstant. Q. Of wha t did tho 
f ood store c onsist? A.. There was b r ead, E1Gat, flour a nd 
o ther f oodstuff s . 0 . And was the vO!7ctabl·o store l)art of 

j ~ 0 J. ) 

the S8I.1C s tWTC? I ... No , t hat wa s about 300 llwtrcs away from it. tI 

COL. BACKHOUSE : (To tho vd tness) 
impressi on tha t t he br Gad s tore 
f r ojJ. each othe r? l~. My b r ea d 

Were you no t tr~/ing to givc the court the 
anu the v980tab l e s tore were a long way away 
s toro a nd v cgetal)l c store were in onc block. 

Yl.. Yes. Q. Was f ood ve ry short ind<;:ed by the t :L·:lC you sot t o Be lscn~ 

Q. How ofte n <lid you s e t a ny b r ead into the b r ead stor e ? J.'J Once. 

Q. Wher e di u it CO}:le f:r;o,i1? 
vvehrr.1a ch t ba rrocks. 

A. I do not know exactly, I b c lidve from th0 

Q. Were t he prisoners r egul a r ly dyiilg of sta rva tion by t hat tll10:'? A. The 
prisoner s got no t enou gh f ood. 

Q. Wer e no t the prisoners dying r egula rly by that tir,le, in hundreds? A. Yes. 

Q. Did prisoners try and steal f ood? A. Yes. 
17. 
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Q. What did you do vmen you caught prisoners trying to stea l food? 
it away from therne 

Q. Is that all y ou di d? 11... Yes. 

A. I t ook 

Q. ) .. lot of other people were beating prisoners for trying to t ake even peelings, 
wore not they? A. I l.ave not seen one single case. 

Q. DiQ not you s ec ~ny beating at all in Belsen? A. No, I have not seen it. 

Q. I supyose you never saw it in Auschwitz either? A. Yes, I saw it in 
AuschHitz. 

Q. Of course no qharge ~cs be on Dllide against you in r 8spect of Aus chvdtz, has 
it? .A. No. 

Q. l:..nQ you never ' s aw anybody beaten at all in Belson? A .. No, I have not seen it. 

Q. Do you r eJ",1Qub er in the las t few clays at Belsen the pri soners b dnd lilB.cle to 
draG the cor-2ses away to the big pit that was dug for therll? A. Yes. 

Q. Did they COElG qui t o near t o your b r eael store? 
b r ead s t ore. 

A. Yes , they CQue near my 

Q. And. you never s aw anybody b ea ten a t all? A. No , I have no t s een it. 

Q. Did you h~ar Mr. Druillcnec 's evidence here in tius court? 
heard it. 

Q. Did you hear his account of that dreaUful procession? A. Yes. 

A. Yes, I 

Q. il..nd. you never saw a single case:: of b "a ting? ft. .. ' I was no t in the brea d store,. 
I was in the foocl store. 

THE PRESIDENT: Do you think he has 30t tba t question right? 

COL. R i.CKlIOUSE : vVhat he r.1eans is a lthou[Sh they wont past the l.l r eacl store he 
vms in the f ood. store. (To the yvitncss) Where wa s the foocl store? 

A. The first hut l eft of the entrance . 

Q. That wa s ,a ct1.Jl1.l.ly ih the [.lGn' s comjJoun~~ ,. -,ns not it? 
conpound. 

A. Yes , in the LlCn' s 

Q. Di d. you sce this ~rocession? A. Yes . 

Q. It Yf<.mt on a ll day fo r clays , did. not it? A. I do not kno"il vrhe t her it 
l as ted a ll day, but I Saw sev er a.l tiEles lookinz out on the stree t ~)c;ople 
dragging corpses; 

Q. Wno fetched the f ooo. f rom the fooQst oro? 
kitchens. 

A. 'VIe t ook i t on ca rts t o the 

Q. Who was in charge of k itche n No .4? .: .. ; I do no t knpw. 

Q. You handed oui; the food to the kitchens? You t ook it the re in carts, did 
no t you? A. No , the pri.soners we r e takinG the carts to the ki tchens~ 

Q. You supervised it? A. We l oaded the cart and then the p risoners t ook the 
cart away t o the kitchen. 

Q. You know whe!'(l the bat:1hQ7US e vIas where you slep t, do no t you? A. Yes~ 

Q. There was a kitchen :lr:'::1Cdi a.toly opposite t hat , '-o.s not there? ;.'> .• Yes, 

Q. Th..'t t ,vtlS kitchen No.4, YiaS not it? l l. I do no t lmow e xactly whether that 
ViaS Kitchen N0.4 

Q. Le t US call it kitchen N<b.4- Do not worry about the l11.mber. Who was in 
char Ge of that kitchen ·:lr.lii';crua tely oppos ite the bathhouse? 

18. 
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A. I carmot re!'J.ember his nai"De; it was a scbarfuhrer. 

Q. Then the S.S. kitchen was j~t round the corner~ram it~ was no t it? 1 ... Yes. 

Q.. W110 "i'laS in char..:;o of the S. S. k.i tchen? A. May. 

Q. You so.y you slept i n the ba i:lfu.ouse? A. Yes. 

Q. Die: 1,:Ie l sher ' and .Mo..thes both sleep in the bathhouse too? A. Melsher was 
sleepins in the ba thbousej Ma thes Yf,~ sle0ping SOLle.mere clse~ I do not lmo1if 

where. 

Q. li.nci y ou s~llply s aw thcLl there in the f!lornins when you vrent out to your work, 
a nd y ou s aw then again in the evening when you played cards; is t hat ri!j1t? 

A. Yes, I saw then in the Elornin,s; and a t night , b ut not durin[:; the day tjjn6. 

Q. Quitc a l ot of the S.S. left on the 11th or 12th, did not they? A. Yes~ 

Q. And that 'V1Jas about t he S8.l"J.e t~lle these proc e ssions were started to clea n up 
the cnrap? A. They were alr eady draS.2:ing corpse s when I a rrived in Bel sen. 

Q. You were gettins p retty short . of S. S. uen , were not you, aft e r the Ek.'lin body 
l eft? 1 ... Yes, ~.)Ut thc re were wehrrilacht a nd Bavarians. 

Q. In those last few days eve ry;jody had to l end -Cl hand, cii d not t hey , who 
could? A. I think so. 

Q • . :fI.To-.;.r I want just t o deo.l with this incident about Al r..aleh. If y ou saY, s or,lcbocw 
t o.kinS b read from the kitchen did you rea lly only JUS t go anC'. take it B..VoJaY fror.1 
theu ? A. I ho. vc nev cr s een anybody taking "!:l r ead a'way, because I never . was in 
thc b r ead store. 

Q. Well, neve r mind whe ther you ever v'Tcnt into the b r ead store ; y ou wer G in c har/;:;o 
of it, v'{cn::e no t y ou? A. There 'ivas 8.n a ufscherin in t he bread store .. 

Q. vYho YJaS the aufseherin in the b r ead store? A. Charlotte Klein. ' (No. 56) 

Q. Anu s h e -wns under your orders, was not she? A. Yos . 

Q. You -'-fero in fD-ct in char .:.,o ·::f the 1JrcaC!. store, we re not you? 
in chargo of thG bread store , but I Vfo..S not working the re. 

A. Yes , I V'l!J.S 

Q. Up t o now nobody has suggGst odyou were. What I ar.l suggesting t o you is this, 
t hat on a (by in April you cane into the street just a s a girl cane out of th4:.! 

"!:l r cau sto r e ',{ith S0110 b roa d , a nd that vou asked the girl what she Y{as do ing 
ther e , ttat she said: " I m,l hungry", u;'a began t o run a'way. Is no t that true? ' 

1'... I have not s een t h e girl vri th bread. 

Q. And then tha t y ou shot her. A. That is not true . 

Q. There wa s quite !J. l ot of s hooting goine on t hos e lru;t £'OYf' d..o:t.Ys , was :n,, 't; t ,.hB.L"0'? 

Ye s , in the l !J.s t two days. 

Q. And there wa s quite !J. hit o f shootinr; go.ins on bef ore t he l a st two clays , was 
no t there? A. No , there livas nqt mueh s hooting. 

Q. There was quite a l ot of shooting r ound the kitchons " v.<l:lS not thero? L,o I 
. do not lmow. 

Q. Where ... ,,-as the shootins that you mentioned going on them? A. It was l:1ostly 
near the qua:;"terS of the zuards. 

Q. I sus~est to you that it ~Nas the po~ular p r a ctice ther e i f a nybody tried t o 
stea l a ny f ood, e ither (rOD the kit~hen, the store or e lsewhere , if you 
c~u.ght theEl t o shoo t tberJ.. A. ' I ha VG never s e en a ca se tJ.1a t a girl , 
o r a :?risone r has bcc~l shot. 

19. 
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Q How many oookhouses were there in the men's compound ? A. Two. 

Q Do you knovf the nWilbers of these cookhouses? A. I beliebe 1 and 2. 

TI-;E JUI:X1E JillIJOCATE: 
·the British came? 

You wel'e in Relsen for about a 'Week , is that right, bofore 
A. Yes, about a week. 

Q And that V"aS the timo when the prisoners were vory hungry indo od" WaS not it? 
A They wero ver~ hungry. 

Q Under whose orders we re you whon you wore perf orming those duties? 
j A Haupsturmf'uhrer Voglor. 

Q Did you not e:x:pect that the hungry inmates of Belson would particularly at 
that time endeavour to stoal any focrl that was possiblo? A. Yes. 

Q Did you consider thnt it would be d ght if a t hiof Y1aS caught at that time 
that it should bo reported to the comnandant so that a proper example should 
bo made of him to dcter others? A. No, I do not think so. 

Q Did you get no instructions what you wera to do ii' you oaught somebody trying 
to steal from tho food store? A. No, I have not beon told anything. 

Q How' many thieves do you say you actuo.lly caught during that l ast woek? 
A There we re vory few thioves ooming in the food store becCl use v.re had three or 

four prisoners guarding thc door. 

Q Will you answer my quostion please? Hem m[my pcopie yvol'c brought to you or 
you knoW of Who '7ero stealing from the store during the l E1s t wode? I •• I 
cannot romember a s i nglo Case exactly from tho food store, but I know they 
wero stealing vegetb.blos from noxt door eve r y dny. 

;.. 1'.LE:MBER OF THB COURT: Did you. oarry a revolver or any fire-o.:nns? 
a r ev olvor. 

Q DQd you c arry a stiok? A. l'Io, I had no stick. 

THE PRESIDEI\J~: Hove you any questions on that? 

ClLPI'. 'BI<O'VTN: No • 

(The accused leaves the ~lnco from which he 
has given his evideno,~ .) 

j\, . I hod 

C.A.PI'. BROWN: There is one point upon ,'ihich I Would ask the i ndulgence of the 
Court. I have boen trying to trace D. '.vi tncss on behalf of this Clcousod and 
I hava got whtl. t I might Call a clue. I think thore is a possibility that 
I may be able to t race the 'wi tncss some time this wook [Un I vrould like to 
ask the Court if I could Oall him on bohnlf of this accused l ater. 

THE PRESIDENT: Have you any objection to that, CoL Beckhou.so? 

COL. :&I.CKHOUSE: I have no objoction at 31L 

THE PRESIDENT: I think the Court fully realise tho ro has be on considerable 
dii'ficulty in getting witnesses so you Can produce the witness in due course. 

THE JUDGE ADVOCATE: If it is agreed . 

TIlE PRESIDENT: I t hink Yve ngreed that from the beginning. 

20. 

www.bergenbelsen.co.uk



. .. 
. . -.... 

. ',- ~ ,.-- ".--

CAPT. FIELDEN: I represent the three accused Pinchen, No. 22; Otto, No. 23; 
",nd Stofel, No. 25. -They are all includo.d in the Bclsen charge only. I 
proposo to call Pinohon to give his evidence. 

TEE ACCUSED. ANCHOR PINCBEN.I takes his staw 
at the' place from which the other witnesses 
have given their evidence and, having been 
duly sworn, is examined by C.APr. FIELDEN as 
follOW's: -

Q What is your full name, and how do you spell it? A. Ansgar Pichon. 

Q When and where were you born? 
in Denmark. 

A. On the 22nd Septemb~r, 1913, in Esberg , 

" 

' \ 

Q What nationalityvvas your father when you wore born? A. A Dane. 

" 

Q Did you go from Donmark to Upper Silosia in 19l4? A. Yes. 

Q What happened thore in 1922? A.. In 1922 Poland took over Upper Silosia 
and we became Polish nationals. 

Q When did you first join the German ll:rmy? On the 25th May, 19~. 

Q Were you conscripted? A. Yes. 

Q Did you beoome a member of the l02nd Infantry Division? i\.. Yes. 

Q Were you wounded on the 25th November, 1942? , A. Yes. 

Q Was your left ham crippled as a rosul t of that Iwound? A. Yos. 

Q Will you show your loft hand to tho Court? (The vfitness dpes so.) 

. Q Did you go to hospital as a rasul t of that wound? A. Yos. 

Cd When did you leave hospit31? A. lOth Jnnuary, 1943. 

Q Where did yo-q go to then? A. Troppauin Moravia. 

Q H~v long did you stay there? A. Until March, 1943. 

Q Whero did you go to then? A. NCNTstadt in Silesia. 

Q Whoro did you go from thero? A. To n P.O.W. camp, punishment cnmp, in 
BloohaDnar, in Upper Silesia. 

COL. BACKHOUSE: I think ther-:; is no doubt it is the same place but a different 
spelling. 

CAPr. FIELDEN: When did you arrive thoro? A. ,At the cnd of March, 1943. 

Q Where did you go to from Blcohannor? A. Thon in June, 1 94Lf-, I came to 
Dunbrowa in Poland. 

Q When did. you leavo- DunbrtJila? A. In July. 

Q What year? 1944. 

Q What happened then? i... I went baok to Bleohanner conocntro.tion oamp. 

COL. Bt .. CKP..oUSE: He said June, did not he? 

THE INTERPRETER: He said Jure am July but I do not think he understands the 
difference botvloen June and ,July. I will ask him again. 

TIIE WITNESS: July. 

... 

I ' 
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'C.iiJ?T .. :nETJTh1N: Whon did YDu1eaV'o .Bloaha.nnor? .A. 21st January, 1945. 

Q Whoro did you go t o from Blochannor? A. G-rossrosen. 

Q When did you arrive there? A. On approximately the 20th Fobruary, 19l45. 

8 When did you leave Grossrosen? 'A. On ·the 25th February, 1945. 

Q Did you leave Grossrosen with B:1J.y other of the accusod? A. Yes, togothJr 
with Franoioh (Accused No.16) am with two others who arc not here. 

Q Where did you go to from Grossrosen? A. Bergen-Belsen. 

Q When did you arrive there? A. J.bout the lOth March, 1945 • 
. 

Q What happened v{hen you first arrived at Belsen? A. - I was detailed for \ 
guard duties but I refused as I VfElS excused guard. 

- • I 

Q Why were you excused guard? A. BecaMe of' my hElm. 

Q Did you join the S. S .. ? bo. They t o ok away l11Y papers and I un1orsto!\l that 
I should now join tho 8.S. but whot h<ir I had been accepted f or service 'with 
the S.S. I d o no t know. 

Q Did you e'Ver wear an S. S. uniform? J... . No . 

8 What was the first work you did? A. On the 27th in the kitchen - cookhouse. 

Q Which kitchen was th:J. t? A.. Ki tehen No . 2, as n sort of apprentice so I 
should loarn tho job un3.or Untorscha~uhror Hueskol. 

Q What d id you do aftar that? A. After f our days I to ok charge of cookhouse 
No . 1. 

Q How long did you sta y in that position? 
arrosted on the 17th April, 1945. 

A. Up to the day of my being 

(At 1300 hours the Court is closed.) 

(At 1430 hours the Court is re-opone c1 .) 

(The accused are again brought before the C("lurt.) 

Q We had arrived at thJ stage whore ;r')u wero put in charge of No . 1 Ki tchon 
am you SElid that you stayed there until the liberation of the crohp? A. Yes . 

Q Did you have a pistol whilst · you wore at Belsen? A. Yes. 

Q Did you carry it whilst you worked in the kitchen? A. ·No 1 durLog my 
v{orking in the Id. tchen I did not carry it . I put it into a oupboard, but on 
tho way from the barracks to the kitchen I .carried it. 

Q YiDS that cupboard l ockOO? A. Yes. 

Q ';las the pistol l onded? A. No . 

Q What wore yoUJ~ duties in the cookhouso? A. I Was suporvisihg the co oking. 

Q What were your hours of work? 
afterno on. 

A. Owe intho morning and once in the 

THE PRESIDENT: I do not think: ho has quito f ollOlved. 

CAPl'. FIELDEN: Thoro wore tvlO shifts, actually. 

THE WITNESS: Either 0300 hours until 1300 hours or in the afternoon from 1300 
hours until 2300 hours or mid-night • 

. 22. 
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CAPT. FIELIEN: Who was in charg~ of the kitchen when you were not there? 
A The second chef, or the second cook; I ' know o~ his ,Christian nillue. His 

Christian MI,W is J.osef but I do ho t know his other nrune. 

Q How EJanY internees vvorked in the kitchen? 

Q ~Vhen you arrived a t Belsen were any specific orders given to you as to how 
you were to trea t the internees? hA No. 

I 

~ Ca n you describe to the Court the loca tidnof the ' various guards a nd sentries 
round Kitchen No. 17 A. The first thing, near the kitchen were the towers, 
the watchtowers, which .vere always guarded; then there was one guard at the 
kitchen, the second guard near the broad stores and the third guard near the 
other kitchen. 

Q How would you describe your relations with the internees working in your 
ki tchen? A. I was on good tenns with those internees working f'or r.le. 

Q Did you ever do anything to help thQtl? A. Yes, I saw th~t they had been 
working well and that they were very huntry so I went to the bread stores 
and saw some bread -which vm.s broken, broken loaves of b r ead, a nG. I brought 
a number of these broken loave s into the kitchen and distributed them 
amongs t the prisoners. 

Q I nav: r e f er to the t es timony of Sophia Litwinska, Volume 7 of the tra nscript 
'Page 7. Do you rEmember earing the t GStimony of tho prosecution 'witness 
Sonhia Litwinska who made allegations of shooting in the vicinity of kitchen 
No: 1 on the Bay vlnen the S. S. men ha.d their parade? It. Yes, I rerllEnber. 

'l'HE .JtJIGE ADVOCATE: Wh e r e is this? 

CAPT. FIELDEN: This witness did not identify the a ccused a s being implicated 
in tha t shooting, but I think the prosecution will agree it is the same 
incident as is r eferred to in the affidavit of Estera Wajsblurll, which is 
No. 167. 

COL.., BACKHOU3E: Yes. 

THE JUDJ.E ADVOCATE: The only point I was ITl.1Slllg was that I have not taken it 
down in r~ book as against this witness. 

CliPT. FIELDEN: The witness who came to the Court · did not rilake a ny specific 
a llegation a gainst this accused, but she did Llak e certa in a llegations in 
vW1ich she said that the S.S. persollilel of Kitchen No. 1 werc ~~iliicated. 

THE PRESIDENT: This corroborates this ai'fida vi t; that is what y ou are driving 
a t, is it? 

CAPT. FIELDEN; Yes. 

THE JUIXi-E ADVOCATE: VVha t is the volur.le you vm.nt us to l ook a t? 

CAPT. FIELDEN: No. 7 page 7. 

COL. BACKHOUSE: You r eally want to look a t the bottor.1 ot: 'page 6 to realise 
she is speak:i,ng of this riUn. 

CAPT. FIELDEflf: She is relating to kitchen No. l? 

COL. BACKHOUSE: Yes. 

CAPT. FIELDEN: (To the ,,;vitness): Do you reJilember the occasio n shortls' before 
the liberation of the car:lp when a ll the S. S. 1i1en were called on a parade? 

A Yes, ' 

www.bergenbelsen.co.uk



Q Will you tell the Court what bappehed on that occasion? A. I · got an orC!.er 
through the 'phone that a ll S. S. men and a lso those in charge of the 
cook..l,.ouses had to go on parade~ KOE1Q8.lldant K.rar.ler spoke to us a nd told us 
that we had to stay on our jobs until the British troops arrived. Then I 
remember that during the appel somebody Cal: .. e and reported to Kramer that the 
cookhouse No. 2 had been -- that there was s ome trouble there, sortof revolt, 
but I rlid not bother about :it; nw duty was f'inished so I went to· rJY own 
barracks. 

Q H'ld you locked the kitche n a nd taken the key with you on the parade? A. Yes. 

Q To whom did y ou give the key at the end of' the parade? A. I gave it to 
the second cook who vmrked under rJ;y cmrr.13.nd; vd th the Christian name Josef' 
whcrn I mentiondd bef'ore. 

Q Did you go to the kitchen or did you go to the viciD1~ again t~t day 
after the cnd of' the parade? A. No; I vfGnt to nw barracks because I did 
not f'eel ve ry well a nd I did not CO to the kitchen until the next day. 

Q I no .... { ref'er to the a f'f'idavits of' Jekel Gutman and Sirncha ZarJOsld., \vhich are 
respectively Nos. 30 a nd 179. GuU~is a~idavit is rnerelY corroborative 
of' Zanoski. Have you ever b een in cl13.rge of' a bathhouse? A. No, never. 

" 

Q Have you eve r been a t Dora? A. I have never seen Dara. 

Q I now ref'er to the a ffidavit of StunislQV Halota ------

(fEE J1lJX:.E ADVOCATE: Before you go on jus t sce if we agree on this, will you. 
So f a r a s I am concerned ZaI.lOsld. said nothing t o the de triment of' this r.Jal1? 

CAPTo FIELDEN: Allllaallegod asainst him was that he was a t the door: of the 
bathhouse~ 

TI-lli J1J.[X;E ADVOCATE: Exn.ctly. The witness Gutnan diel no t take it a ny :further 
except to corroborate that and, therefore, a ll it ar,10unts to; so far as 
GUU7J8..n ,:md ZarJoski are concerned, is that they both say he did certain 
j obs which he did no t do. That is the sole a ccusation, is it? 

CAPT. FIELDEN: Yes. 

TEE JUIXm ADVOCATE: 'fha t is what the Court have got and they will t a ke it on 
that basis. 

CAPT. FIELDEN: I refer now t o the affidavit of Stanislav Ha lota, No. 39." 
(To the witness): What do you s ay about the alle8atio~ conta£ned in 
paragraph 2 of that affida. vi t? A. Tho firs t thing is'· I never cooked for 
the 'Wor.lon IS cOlllpoundj the second thing is the a f'ficla vi t says that I killed 
with one bullet two persons - that is M rdly poss:Lble. 

Q Are the allegations contained in that paragraph true or not true? A. Untl."Uo . 

Q Are you a good shot with a pistol? 
but never with a pistol. 

A. No; I had ,.ry ti-aining n. t the guns 

THE JUIXi.E ADVOCATE: Where does the witness r efer to the wor.1en's C001]ound in 
r e l a tion t o t he Ha l ota affi da. vi t ? 

CAPI' • FIELDEN: In t he third sent e nce in pa rag;raph 2.· "I was in a working party 
whicl1 had t o -carry · conta iners of soup :trOD Pichon t s kitchen t o the woucn 's 
C£)DP" • 

THE PRESIDENT : That does not necessarily s ay it was a women IS kitchen. 
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CAPT. FIELDE.l'l': HE;; is Derely pointing out that he is r.'l8.king several errors 
apart froTa the f a ct tha t h e was the i·,lEl.n who was concerned, a nd in addition 
he h."l.S l:1ade a nistake Clbout food beine taken from kitchen nuuber one to 
the women IS ca.!,lp. (To the witness) A:re the allegations contained in 
paragraph 2 of the affidavit correct? A. No, they are not true. Three 
weoks before the Bn tish troops caLlO I had not boen working in cookhouse 
No.1. 

CIlPT. FIELDEN: I think the allegations contained in pa ragraph 3 have already 
been denied by his description of w~t l~ppened on the day the SS men had 
their parade. 

THE PRESIDENT: Yes. 

CAPT. FIELDEN: (To the witness) Did you over carry a stick or rubber 
truncheon in Belsen ? A. No. 

Q Have you ever ill-treated prisoners? A. I never had a ny reason for it. 

Q Ha ve you ever ,shot any prisoners? A. No, I never used nw pistol in 
Bergen-Belsen. 

Q V{ere a ny of the people who l~vo :.l..'Lde accusations against you i..."lternees who 
worked in your cookhouse? A. This vri tnoss Wajsblur.l, but I do not know 
whether she had been 'working in Dy kitchen. 

Q Were axw of the other people who have made accusations a gainst you intern-
ees who worked in your cookhouse? A. No. 

Q Did YOll ever have a pass or a pon iut a llovv.ing you to go into the women's 
compound? A. No. 

NL\.JOR WINV'IOOD: No questions. 

MAJOR IIWNRO: No questions. 

MAJOR CRANFIELD: No questions. 

CAPT. ROBERTS: No questions. 

Cross-ex.aJ.nined by CllPT.iUN BROWN 

Q Do you know the a ccused Mathes, n1.l.Dber 18 ? 
prison in Cello. 

A. I got t o know hi.:l in 

Q Was he over in cookhouse No. 1 Vlhen you were there? A. No. 

Q Hoyr rJaXW cookhouses were there in the raen's compound ,? A. Two kitohens. 

Cross-ex.ru~ined b~ CAPTAIN CORBALLY 

Q Do you know the a ccus ed Barsch ? 
when I }1.ad typhus. 

A. I got t o know hiJ.-n in the hospital 

Q When was that? A. Between May a nd Augus t 15'45. 

Q Was he ever an SS L'l8.n in ki tchell No . 1 while you were there ? A. No. 

Q As f a r a s you know was h e in a ny of tho ld tchens in Be~sen? A. I do not 
know h:iJ:t. I think I knew fairly well a ll the people who were in c har ge of 
the kitchens, but during the appels I have never s een hi.i:t 
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CAPT. NEAVE: No ~uestions. 

ClIPT. PIULLIPS: No questions . 

LT. BOYD: No ~ucstions. 

Cross- exar.u.ncd by C.APW.IN Mul'mO 

Q Do y ou- know -clus woriun ? (Indica ting No.45) A. Yes. 

Q Did she work in c ookhouse No.1 at Belsc n ? A. Ye s, during thc last 
week bef ore the a rrival of the British troops . 

• LT. JEDRZEJOWICZ: No questions. 

Cross-cx&-nned by COLON"EL BACKHOUSE 

Q vfuen you vrere a t Blecbanner we re you at a concentration canp or onc of the 
prisoner of war Ca1:1ps ? A. Vfue:il I YV'as there f'or the first t:L:1G I ViaS 

in a P. O. W. carilp. 

Q And the second tirn.e? A. The second tL1e it was a working CaI..'lP belonging 
t o the Auschvvitz a r ea. 

Q It was one of the outside C8L1pS of Auschwi tz, ,vas no t Ooi t ? 
wba.t I have b een t old, but I do not lmow. 

A. That Is 

Q Vfuen did you r eally go the r e f or the first tir.le ? A. On the 10th March 
1943, a nd. I staye d there until Fcbruary 1944. 

Q Whe re d id you go in February 19414· ? A. Dunbrowa.. 

Q Tha t vvas in February" 1944, ¥lD.S i '" " ? A. Yes. 

Q 1Vhen did you go back to Blecha.nncr ? A. In July 1944. 

Q You rea lise t hat i s not what you told. us earlie r on to-day, do not you? 
A. Yes , I t ol d t hat I 18ft Dunbrown. in June. / 

Q You s a id you ,,-rent ther e in June this ;Oolorlung ·? 
,vas s ent t o Neustadt a nd directly t o DunbroWQ. 

A. I l eft in Febrw.1.ry, 

Q This is a ll ~uit(; di.f'f'erent t o what you told. us this Dorning , is not it ? 
A. It is the safn.e. 

Q ~his L10rning you told us tha t you went to Neustadt in :March 1943 a nd th~n 
froin Neustadt t o Blechannor a t the Gnd of Harch 1943; is that righ~ ? 
A. Yes. 

Q Then you t old us that you sta_ycd a.t BlecTh'Ul1ler ulltil you w0nt in June of' 
1944- to Dunbrovtn,; is th--'\. t ri@lt? il. No , froE1 March 1943 Wl-t j 1 F e l'.L'U;'Lt."Y 
19411- in Blech .. nner. 

QOo Was that a S traff'e canp f'or prisoners of war ? A. Yes. 

Q WIn t ViaS your unit t hen ? A. Lagcrschutz COLlpany" :80. t bLlion No. 8. 

Q Who wa s in cOllluand ? A. Major Tichcr bo. 

Q How l ong were you at Dunbrovia ? A. Four r:.lo nths~ 

Q Thcn in July 1 944- did you go back. t o Dl e channElr ? 
\ 

26. 
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Q This tine t o the concentration CaD]) ? A. The official nal.18 Vias Labou.:::-
Cx 'ap not concentro. tion CG.l:1p . 

Q The officia l nar,li] of Belscn \"IaS Tro.l1si t Camp, 'iJaS it not? 
know. 

A. I (10 not 

Q Fro~.! July 19Lr4- t o J anULlry1945 do you so.y you wore a guard at Blechanner ? 
A. Yes. 

Q Then you went t o Grossrosen ? A, Yes. 

Q When do you say you o.rrivecl a t Grossroson ? A. Approxir;Ja tely 20tn 
February 1945 . 

Q This morning you said '21 st J e nULlry} diG. you not ? 
on the 21 a t J a nuary. 

A. We left Blech3.rn _'r 

Q Were wer e you in the nonth in oetwecm ? A. We marched from Blech£!.D.l'ler 
t o Grossrosen. 

Q .Are you sure you did no t 130 t o ])ora ? J. Lo I did not 130 t o Dor a & 

Q Did you stop , t Nordh.n.usen? A. I know only the car:1p a t G·:r.os s ro:;;on 'i.'horo 
I spent four. dayc,; t ha t is all. 

Q Then you say you l eft Grossros en with Franchio? ' A. Yes. 

Q And you say you c..rrived a t Belson cn the 10th March; is tha.t ri[:;ilt ? 
A. I do not know exactly, but I b eli evG b e tween the 10th a nd 15th March. 

Q vThy did you ob j Gct t o doing glk'1.rd duties when you were up there ? 
A. Becaus e I a.iJ. excused e;oo.rd duties. 

Q You have done [;Uar cl duties Et t Blcch';mner, [Jave not you? 
as 2 . sort of deputy f or sOLl.ebody on the se duties. 

A. Yes, I diel. 

Q You did suam duties a t Dunb rowa , cl:i.d not you? A. We wore :;uardins 
the works th0re a t Duribrovffi / and wc ~.;tayod ,3.t the entrance s o tha t an::t:Jocly 
who VffiS no t a llowed to enter should not go in. 

IJ Do you r eally t ell us tbD.t f or a f ortnigh t in March a t Belsen you cUd 
nothing a t all? A. No , I did no'~ do anything a t a ll. I was s ent to 
the 1,1.0. and ho sta.tod t hat I !ld e:x:,~used 8uard duties. 

I 

Q Who was the M.O. you saw ther e ? A. I do not know. 

Q Then you wont t o coolrJlOuse No.2 uncler Heuskel ? A. Yes. 

Q Then thor o is no doubt about it a t all, you CLr c the man who thon bec['..i~1e i n 
charge of cooldwuse No~ 1, a r e not you? A. Yes. 

Q Of course~ you havo cha nged your a}ypear a nce a gr e;a t deal, have not you, 
si.ncc you wer e: a rrested '{ A. I dU not knov/; I do not think I have , 
cha nee cl. 

Q You wore your hair pretty long whil e you were a t Be lsen, did not you '? 
A. Yes , I wore j . t VGry long , but . Ll hospita l wh en I had t Yl)hus my luir 
was eut off, 

Q You dic.l not 'Wear a dousta che \iThen yClU 'were in Bolsen oi ther, did you ? 
A. I believe I h.~d one,. 

27~ 
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Q Just look at this ::;hotoe;raph and sce if you can recognise y ourself in it. 
(Photograph SG3 handed) A. Yes, nurabcr three froLl the left. 

Q ID you r c,.leuber Litvdnska \vho gave evidence? Aa Yes. 

Q She workc::d in your kitchen, did not she ? A. Yes. 

Q Are you surprise d that she could not pick you out a lthough she worked in 
your kitchen f or a lons tir:1e ? A. Yes, I was very much surprised 3ho 
could not r e cocnis e r:1G. 

Q Do you rer.lcr.lber ZylberdukD.. ten? ;;.. . Yes. 

Q Were y ou surprised when she coul~ not D1aD8.CC to recognise you ? 
not know· Zylb erdukaten. 

\ 

A. I do 

Q Were YOIl surprised whenZnmosld Lli ~;scd you as well? A. He could not 
recognise De if h e was in Dorn. n.n<l I Ewself had never b een thore~ 

Q Never Bind about Dora for a rlloment. Zo.rr..oski had s een you inthc kitchen 
a t Belsen, Md no t he ? ,A. I h ::u:1 nothing t o do with the male prisoners, 
I hacl only f e'·:1.c'l l c pris on ers vmrking in rw kitchen. 

Q Who t ook the f ooC:L away frOlll y our kitchen? A. Five or six Russia ns v,reru 
er"i!ployed on i t o They C8LW with a handcart a nd fetchecl the food fron the 
kitchen. 

Q Men or vroillcn ? A. Hen. 

Q Of course , your ki tchcn was in the men's cODpounc1, ,;vas it not ? 
, 
.ti. Yes. 

Q You told us tha t you :lmow the stn.f'f of all the kitchens there. Let us 
jus t scc if we can agree then. 1ii[ho was in charge of ki tchcn No. ll- ? 
A. It vmo Cl. Scharf'uhrer, I do not rcrl1enber his name. 

Q Who W3.S the o ther SS man with hj.r,l who look ed a fte r the other shift ? 
A. The r e was only· onc there. 

Q vVho 100kc(1 a fter the second shift? A. I do not knOYf. 

Q It wn.s immedi a tely op?ositc the bath-house , wa s it not ? A., Yes. 

Q You a r e quite sure it was not }!lat hes n.nd Melcher? A. No ; I kneYiI" him 
qui to vvell but h e r...angec1 hiL:self in the prison at Celle. 

Q vVho worked in thc SS k:i. tehen ? J~. Stun-as charf uhr er May. 

Q Do y ou Imow villa v{orkod. in it before hiLl ? A. I do not Imow. 

Q If you car.lcinto the ki tchcn froLl the r;lain entra nce to the; caJap, b ef'or 8 
you a ctun lly C84~1C i nto th(; l a[;er, if you came cloym froLl the SS quarters 
or if you cLlDe down f r Oi:1 the "Da th ··hous8, the firs t ki tchen you would 
COi~O to vroulcl be kitchen No.4, would it not? A. Yos, it is kitchen 
No.4 but it i s s tin i n the SS par t. 

Q The f'irst one you C3I!le t o would be No.4 ? A. Yes. 

Q A.nd the second on e y ou CDllle t o would b e the SS ki tohen, woulcl it . not? 
A. Yes, the SS kitche n and. the c o.ntcen t ogether in one block. 

Q Tha t woul,l be the seconU ki t:chen you caLlC to, would. it not ? A. Yes o 
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Q In f a ct, if it was sa..:!e"body y"ho was counting instead of knowing the 
proper numbers they ni@lt very reasonably ca ll it kitchen No.2, rnight 
they not ? A. No, beca use everybody knew that nLll:ibcr 1 wa s a kitchen 
for the prisone rs a nd the second one was f o r the SS personnel. 

Q The SS kitchen was e,iui te near t o tho DUin gp. te into the men's compound, 
was it not? A. No; it is SOLle distance - about 1,50 to 180 Lletres. 

Q Did you ever eat Qny vegetabl es in the SS oess ? A. Yes. 

Q Were those prepared in the SS kitchen ? A. No , they were prepared in 
the cellar, a nd this cellar ,ffiS in the men I s compound.. 

Q Then v~re t hey t a ken to the SS kitchen to the cook? A. Yes. 

Q Goinz ba ck t o your own ,'lffairs and dealing first of a ll 'with the 13th 
April, you wer0 definitely in charge of kitchen No. 1 then, were you not ? 
A. y es. 

Q Were you cooking turnips in those days ? A. Yes. 

Q Did they b ring turnip s in i n cartl oads a t a t ine a nd tip theu outside your 
kitchen ? - A. They were a hffiYs in front of the kitchen, night and day. 

Q By t hat t~~e the prisoners wer e setting pretty hungr.y~ ~ere they not? 
A. I do not kno"r. 

Q Ib not you know ? A. I do not know y.hether they were hungry, but I r.lUst 
a ssur.le tha't t hey ,[fera . 

Q They were dyi ng of hunger all round you were not they? A. I know tba t 
r.Ja.XJy Met died, but wh e t her they had died. of starva tion, I could not say. 

Q You eoulcl s ec it f or yourself, could you not ? 
they -i f r e very thin. 

A. Yes, I have s een t hat 

Q WbEl t do you Dean you do not lmow y,h other they V'lere hungry or not? 
A. I do not ~cnow whether 6n the 13th they were a lready very hungry, but 
I assw~e they wer o. 

I 

Q Prisoners us ed t o h '1. Tll:<: round the kitchen, did not they, trying to get- a 
b it of turnip or ptato p eel? A. They never touched a nything fro@ 
kitchen No.i. I have hear-'::' t hat t hey have stom-ed k:itche n No.2, but 
they never t ook a nythiTl£3 fror:l my kitchen. 

Q , They used t~ ha ns a round the kitchen waiting f or a n opportunity, did not 
they? A. No , lilY kitche n wa s outs ide the compound. so the;refore the 

' prisoners could not silnply come and bans around rl'JY kitche n. 

Q It vro.s on the side of the m.ain r oac., was it not .? A. ]3oth kitcJ:lcns were 
on the l;u in r oad, but t he coupounds were separated. 

Q Both one a nd two kitchens wer e in precise ly the SaL1G place s o ~ar a s the 
cODpounds were concer ned, they wer e bo th by the side of the j!]3.lD r oa d, 
wer e t hey not? A. Yes. 

Q By t ha t tir.1C t hey wore c1r .:lg;i ns the bodi e s avm..y, we:re they not; you had 
this proce.s~n of prisox:ers workins [111 day clraggi:n,g -;t>odi c s ~own to the 
graves? A. T!1-:'1.t was In C81-l1P n1li:!lbe-r.2; they-did not pa ss kitchen 
nUi:Jb er 1. 
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Q I put it t o you t hat on t hat day, 13th j~pril, you shot two ,;len who vver G 
try inG t o s et S O:.18 turnips ? A. It is not trud,. 

Q Do you r e;',lCl,lbc T a yvoE.:k or two bef or e t hat searching a prisoner just out­
side the kitchen who had go t s on o f oodstuffs on hiQ? A. I do not 
roncu1)cr that I had shot ctnybody - - -

'1 I cUd not say anytllins about shooting" I s aid s earching ? A. The 
incident t o which the witnes s r ef ers happ ened three weeks b efor e toot 
time . I had never been - - - -

Q I diel not 2.. sk you a nyt hiD.£; ab out thr ee weeks or about shooting. ' \Vha t I 
a ske d you v~s a ~eok or tvm b ef or e t he British ~ne did you in f a ct 
s earch tho prisoners? 1" I do no t remember. 

Q Have you eve r s ear ched a ny prisone r s outs ide the kitchen? 
had nothing t o do ,,1 th that. 

A. No, I 

Q If you ha ve nover done it vvhy i s it you cn.rmot r emer.lbcr :whe ther you 
did it a fortniGht bef ore t he British came? A, I have never done 
suCh thil'1..3s. 

Q I suggest t o you t oot you went "back to t he kitchen, put t he f oodstuf'fs 
down, a nd t hen went out a nd shot the p risoner, with your pistol? 
A. The firs t thing is the p istol was l ooked in the cupboard, a nd the 
s econd thine is I 'wa s glad when I clid not need t o use Til;Y pistol b eca use 
I ha d clifficul tic s with 11l;y Cl.llll.. 

Q Wby, d id you have t o use it some tlines? A. No, ne vcr. 

Cl COf,ung t o the day of this pa rade, vvro t c1D. t e ..,18.S it t ha t you h 'lc1 this 
par a de whEm Kraner s ent for you all? A. I ca rmot r CGleUI)er exactly 
whe ther it was the 13th or 14th. It was on the day when a ll the 
auf's eherin r eturneu. froD NeueTJ.glli1lr.1o. 

Q Who did the cooking a nd l ooked a fter the kitchens when the aufseherin 
v/er e away thc day before ? ' A. Ncb oUy, beca us e they were aVlaY only for 
a day or tvm. 

Cl You told us that you s ot a telephone ',18ssage. Wn er e di d t hat come frora ? 
A. Fro::l the of f ice , a nd I should think frol~l K.ro.iler. 

Q Did t hat '.1eSsag8 t ell you t hat all SS Elcn a nd kitchen per soXh"1el ',{er e t o 
rG"flort ? A. \ Yes. 

Q Did they a ll r eport ? A~ I assur,1c~d that everybody cane from No. 1 ; 
both of us from No. 2., and No. 3 Francioh; so I think everybody was the r e . 

Q Was J enner t here ? A. I do not rer.leLlber. I should think y es. 

Q And the Elan froEl No.4 ? A. Yes, h e vms ther e . 

Q Cannot . you r CE18Tilber his nar.le now ? A. No. 
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Q Did you turn a ll the girls out and lock the kitchen up? A. ~he girls 
working in the kitchen waited outside the kitchen and sat in thl su.n.. 

Q You told them. to lea ve the kitchen did you? A. Yes, I gave orders 
tTh~t they should l eave the kitchen until the other Lun returned, 

Q Was there just onc 8,'U'.lrd l eft on the watch tower? A. I do not 'know who 
·was in the 'watch tower, but I had seen Hungarian Zuards in the road. 

Q The witness in affidavit nur.1ber 167 says: "After about half ~n hour 
Piohen and a n SS Rottenfuhrer who worked in the kitchen returned. I do 
not know the naI:1C of the Rottenfuhrer except that his first naLle was 
J oset". , Did you haVG a Rottenfuhr.cr called Josef '1vorking with you? 
A. J oset was his nar:lC but he was not a Rottenfuhrer. Hc 'ifaS sir.lply a 
private. 

Q The vri tness SD.Ys: "Many 1:1'3.le :;:)risollors who were starving t ook the , 
opportunity of obtaining turnips which were pm.led up outside . kitchen No. 
1 ". They were piled up outside the.: ki tohen ,,[ere no t they? -A. ' Yes, 
thn.t is true . 

Q Ca n you think of Q bette r tir.le t o try and steal the turnips tha n .-ihen all 
'che SS 2,uarcls had Gone off on a po..Tac1c ? A. Tha t vra.s quite irWossiblc 
becausc in .front of the kitchen, just neo..r the piles of turnips , there 
VVCl S a guard on clutYe 

Q Was it whilst that parade was 8oin;-!, on tha t K.rarric-r go ttho raessage to say 
ti.at the r e wa s troub l o a t No. 2 kitchen. ~Yes. 

Q Did not you hurry 'back to s ee whethc,T your kitchen wa s 'a1.1 right, and did 
not Heuskel hu.rry back t o s ce ,if his kitchen was all righ~c? A. My 
kitchen wa s locked with a key, but I understand tIu t HeuskCl'S kitchen 
'(,JaS open. Into my kitchen it was Lmossible for them t o come. 

l .L 

Q But you h''1.G. your pile of turnips outside, ha.cl you' n o t ? A. But there 
was a guar d there. 

Q Was not there a guard outside Heuskol's kitchen C' lA-. I do not lcnow. 

Q I suggest t o you t hat you a nd Josef cru:le rwming bQck -F..,o geth8r and when 
you saw the p:d soners a ruuncl your cookhouse stea ling thc.'j turnips you 
both sta rted shooting ? 

A Tha t is not true , bec 9..use I went to Iily barracl\s and Josef "'coul(1 not " 
. / 

shoot because he flL\.cl a rifle 1 but his ri.fl..e wa.s in his barr.5El.cks. Into 

pis lci tchen he only toolc a bayonet. 
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A Y(;s. 

Sh e s a i d : "The man in c ha rge of the ki tche.n told us.. t I a.'n going to iock up 
t he kitchen for an hour or s o' ". You were t he man ill. Cl~e- who did t he 
l ocld ng up, w~re you not? . A, Ye s . 

Then she went on : "All t he S.S. men had a meeting then for a hour or an.. hour 
and a hal f . We "vere lHai ting i n :front of the kitqhe..noi', : I s tJ'lB-t true ? 
L No, it was not a s long a s t hat; llla.X:i-rfJJJID half an .bou:c_ 

Q Wba t tine y{~~ S this pa r acie oalled for ? 
was about noon. 

A I do not know exact:lJr, but it 

Q If i t onl y Vfent on for hal f an hour, you would not be du e off duty at the end 
of the parad.e , wou~d you ? A Oh ye.s, because I st.o.rteo. e arly in tho 
morning . 

Q You told us tha t if y ou s tcrted e ar l y in the morning you were not du o off 
pa rade until 1 0 ' clock. If this parad.e was at 12 and only went on for 
h o.lf an h our, YO!..l we re not due off parade. were you ? A I t :l1ighteasily 
have been hal f pas t 12, and the whole question of a half an hour- t ho.:b · W"W.l not. 
s o v ery Drrporta nt. 

Q The n s he says : 1TNoe.r t he kitchen there were the re:!lrons of vegetables , 
potatoes o.na. a ll sorts of ot her v egetables,TI. That is true, i s it not? 
A Turnips wore t her'e, but no pota toes . 

Q Then sho s ay s : ITAt that moment t h e S. S. men returned" - not "The S. S. r.1an
Tl 

-

"and sta r ted shooting " ? 1. I do not know. I went into :'1,1 h:'lrTacks a nd 
Joseph could not have sho t vvi th hi::; bayonet. 

Q You now, I put it t o you that you indulged not just once, but O!l :nor8 than 011G 

occa s ion i n wha t had become s. popul 8.r sprt in B.elsen., that wa s for the cl'okf'l 

t o ' shoo t prisoners who c ame X'01.ll1d t he cookhouse 7 A No. I mus t rupoat 
t hat I was vory gl a d if I did not n0(;c1 to . shoct. I have beon for 1 8 :o.onths 
2.t t he front a nd I hav e done enough ,,,ho0 ti.c"1g . If I would hn.ve prof\n,-:l-0Q to 
do somo shooting I could hav e volunteer ed to go to the front 8.p:nin. 

Q Yes , bu t somebody'ruig h t ha ve shot at you then, ::ni ght t hey not? A Yes,. 
t hat is truo, but I do not knollf anyth i ng about a s ort. of' -:favour i to sport 
of shooting . 

Q Who WaS your o t he r aufsohorin ? You have tol d u s about Ilso Fors t or, J r 

so!Uebody has . Ilse Forster was ono of thc;"!:J.? was she not ? A I1se 
Forstcr was 0::10 a nd t hon for a f ew day::; theri;J was a wom.a n c alled 01 t 
and t hon tmothcr wO!:1aIl c a llEYl Fr:teCl.erich, 0.nd I do not know whf::'..t wa s t he 
r eason; I think they wer e s ick b8cause t hey dk'U'J.god ov er all the t:uuo. 

Q . I s 01 t the girl who stood up j ust j.10W ? A Yes, s ho was ,vorlci ng in the 
kitchen, but in t h e peoling department , whore t hey peel potatoes . 

Q 
H-RtHJe l. 

Will No. 1f5 s t end up. (Accus ed:re) 01' I f s t c..nds 
girl 'who Wor1<-M in your potato, peeling d0}~r-L'w;nt ? 
tha t gi r l. 

up). 

Q Was No . 4-2, J~is iC'\v:i.tz. evor .in y ::J1-U' k itchen? A Yes • 

A 
Was t ha t the other 
No, I 0.0 not know 

. Q WtLfl,t ''laS she:.; doing ? 
a sb ort p eriod. 

J;, 10 the peeling she tl. She wa s V'rorking t here for 

Q Had any of the ot her ,VO!:len in the doc k worked in YC)1..l. r kitchen? A Only 
Ils e Forster a nd t he two in the p ee ling shsd; noboqy else . 

Q Just I ls o Forster in the kitche n and the Oth81- t WO in the peeling shed ; i s 
t hat right? A Yes . 
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You knovr t hoy behav od very ba dly i n t he kitchen, did th0y not, to the 
pri soners ? .A. I CD.J:mo t ;:'8,':1, becau se of t he s hort period I he.vc beon 
in char g e of t he kitche~'1.. 

Do you r03G-:-mc:r n young Rottcl1i'uhr er who vvorked in that kit chen who went t o 
cOnTpla in t o Mulle r t hat he coul d ""Jo t stand the beating and s tea lin:?;. in the 
1<:i tchen ? A \ I Cfu-ulot re~ne::1be r. 

Q We a r o t a l king of t he ril3htkitchen, a re we not, it i s the ono Li twlnska 
worked it ? A Yes . 

Q Did you never s ec Ilse Fors t e r boa t ing Li hvinskD ? A, I c <. .. nnot r onC!":1ber. 

COLONEL BleCYiliOUSS: Well, if you Call11ot r c:::ol:IDCr I 'will not ask you n:iW !:lor o 
abou t it. 

CAPl'AIN PIELDEN: No ru- c;x8:.".ina tiol1" 

( The oS.ccused l oave s the ,:,l ace f ror., which he hns Zivcn his evidenc e ). 

O.A:PT1HN FIELDEN: k:Y next o.ccused i s ';7o.1t8r otto a nd I '.'rlll call hi:-;l now. 

THE ACCUSE Dl WI,LTER OTTO, t ruces his s t a nd nt t hG pln.cc 
"frO:; v hich t he other witnesses hewe given their evidenc e 
and havi ng be en. duly svJD r n i s eXL1.."J.inGd l)y CJ~TJ~IN FIriliDEi.IJ 
as follows : 

Q What i s your full nrumo ? i. Via l tor otto. 

Q ~. 1'1 en a nd where wore you born ? A On t he 20th July, 1906 in Vluppert a l. 

Q I s t ha: t in t he Rhineland. ? li. ·Ye ~; . 

Q iVhD.t is Y:Jur l1ationc,li t y ? .A. Gor;:r,an. 

Q What was your civilian occupa tion ? le Electrician. 

':2 When d i d you first j oin t h e Germn:i1 f orces ? 1-. In the end' of Sept G'!;1ber 
I Was c 2..11cd end I heeD. t o report on the 15th October, 1 940 , in Berlin, 
Ora nicnburg. 

Q Were y ou t hen conscri~ted int o tl~ S. S. ? 

Q Whcn di d you fi rs t :lrriv e a t Bcl seD ? 

A y es . 

1;, On Sunday, 4th February, 19~-5. 

Q Will you toll t he Court vrho. t wor k Y::)1], did first at Bel sen ? 1;, Wc nrrived 
on Sund.o.y an d t hen t he 'y['ficcs vreru c l osed, 8 0 we rc-por'ted again on MC):ndt:Y 
and we saw Haupt scl-u;,rfuhrer Stci:n::1.otz and he appo i nted D.S t o do work D.S 

electricia ns . Wc s t arted om' job '::m Tue sday . 

Q What WDrk did you (10 ? J- Wo ;-;1{'!.(:Lc: t he dectric ins t a lld i ons fu"1d did 
r epair wor ks i n :ncw bl:)cks rurl on U l '::; I ngGr :,lLU:i1 s treet. 

Q Were you put in char ge of an ol oc trician' s COTT.1B.ndo ? i'. Yes , on 
Tuesday WE; t Cl l d the laGerd,l test~r +;'l get hol d. of' 8.11 t he cl octrici nj1s nr.1ongst 
t he -prisoners . We [ aVe tho:,,:,! CL t es t and ~t t l o.s t vre rued a kO!:1!',:Cll1do of Cll;out . 
17 0; 18 el oct:ricia..Y1s . 

C;.pTL.IN FIELDEN : I will refe r t he wi hlCSS t o the nccusations 8.!3ains t h iQ1, which 
in t he a ffidav:Lt of s t o j CJffska, on ?~.2:e 149 and 150. ( T8 t he VIi t ness ): Have 
you r e Cl. pa r agraph 4 of t he nffid8.Vit on pe.ge 129 ? A Yes . 

What do you say t o that'? A Thi s i s about b l oc k 213 i n .the wO:.:e n l s 
co;c1pound. Th i s cor_1pound WD.S close~ and I could not ent er i t without t he 
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pcr::d. t of t ne doctor. Furthcrnor c I have neve r been a b~ockfuhrer becau se 
it was not pos s i ble f or smobo0y vrorking in a dr:J.inistrn.ti01 to be D.. blockfuhrcr. 

Cd Have you ev er b een t o block 213 or in its ir:nediatc vicinity? A No, only 
in the beginning of Ma rch I went with Dr. Hors-bnann t o b lock . 209 to make that 
dentist's place. 

Q . I VTant to refer you to paragraph 5 of the s ame affidavit. ' What do you saw 
about t hat ? J.\. About t he 10th or the 11 th March, after we had fix ed up 
the denti s t' s phcc, we ha(l been in b locks 195 t o 203. 'Ire 'were in the 
front port of t he caTJp and we ha d to do s ome r (;;'Pmr work. I n thi s block 201 
was a p olish WOr.:l.i:U1 , bl()cka ltes t er c a lled b.l dona . I h2.vG never seen a 
o locka l tester Who was a J'ewess ther e . . 

Q Havo y ou ever b ea t en ~U1yone at :Gels en ? }. No . 

Q Hav e y ou ever done c.::.ny thinc: t o help t he internees a t Bol sen ? 

A Yes. After wc had our electrician kOl;]~ano with a lways the S!:1l"!10 1 8 
people , Haupt s chnrftuhrer Stc i mnet z and I saw t o it t ha t t hey received neviI" 
shoes, t-l/iTO nev{ sets of UndeI'Vlear anl a new suit. Then we .as k ed the wi'cness 
who h'ls been hor e , Dr. J3enrlel t o CO~n8 (md look [e t our kO:r.Tmnndo. He C8L1C 

t wo or t hree ti..":1es a we.ek [--'let said that they wer e r Oot her v{en...l{. Then vve went 

t o Vogler, who was in chc'c r ge of the ~d.':linistration, and as ked for morc food, 

and as the r e s uI t of thOot v're received every day a doub le r a tion fro:!! kitchen 

No. 4.. As this was not su f ficient vrc v.rent to the l ag eral te s ter Ra nkc.. and 

WC saw to it t h'a t· wo r eceived for our kOT1111a ndo every vvcelc tvric e ton extra 
, 

l oaves of b r eaC., ::; kil ograrirrnc of ::-:1. [1.X' :~arine , SO'.lC Dan1cla de and s ometi!1eS 

somE: tinned :~!c at. FurtheI'!'l1ore , i i1 t hQ second we ek 8f the konrr:1L1.nUO wc ;~o t 

1 , 200 ciE~arettes f or t hc':1. Afterv'fD..rd s wc had Dore ci[b 3.rottos ,').l1d when 

we coul d not r ec'eiv e cir.:arcttos we hadpipo toba cc.o . 

s omethi ng t o s noke . 
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Q. Was it any p art of your work to concern yourself "\,Ti th the beds in the 
women's la~er? A. No. 

CAPT. li'IELDEN: That completes my eXaIni n& tion. 

'!AJOR 11UNRO: No . ques tions • 

lti~JOR CRAl\lFIELD: No Cj:U8st i ons , and Cr.:p t. Hoberts has no questi ons. 

9.r..9.§§..:-~o~~lliJ!@lSU:;y C.hPl'. BROWN. 

CAPl'. BRO\VN: My questions relate t o the accused No .1 8 , Mat he s. (To the witness) 
Did you do t ho clectrical ro;:)a ir Vi · '1'1,: in the ba thhouse? A. Yos. 

Q. Can you tell the cour t a~Jpr8xirnatoly '[!hat date tha t was? 
several tiJres. 

i. . I t happened 

Q. CEm you toll t ho c ourt v!l; on the l n8t dnte was? J •• On tho 6th L:L;ril. It ' / D.S 

a Fridny I k11O"'-I , becaus e on 1;'1' id ay our v1fholc komrflando W8S b~thcJ , ond it 
happenod t hen· whan \'le wore. thoro f () l' t he last tiro . 

Q. Do you knovl who was in c hargo of t he bathhouse then? .H •• Mathes , 18S preR8nt, 
1 had beon talkinc with him; and t,;vc' men, members ef· t huwclU'llDcht. but I do 
not kna'lI them. 

CAfT. CORBi.LLY: Ne q:uostions. 

Ci,Pr . N3 ... J1E: No quostions. 

C .. JL"Pl' . PBILLIPS: . No qU0stions. 

LT. ~YD: No CJ).lOstions. . 

ChPT. MUNRO: NO · quBs-l:ions . 

LT. JEDRZETOvJICZ: No quosti.OYle. . 

THE PRESIDm-TT: I am no t sure I hEwe that answer rig ht. The 6th April was the 
lust time ho fiad been in t he b s:>.t hhou.sQ becu-use the ·whole kommanc1o was bathou 
t here? 

CAPI' ~ BRCr:!N: Yes, on that c1atc . 

0 . Do you say y 'J U wore conscriptecl i ntu the S. S. in October 19[I.o? li . Yos. 

Q; Is not it true that y ouworc: . consoripto r1 to the army and voltUlte0rod -ror the 
S.S.? A. No . 

C2. The S. S. WDS still p rotty difficult to got into in 1940, wnS not it? 
A~ r roceiveJ an ·order t o So to Borl i n . OruI1-i..onburg,. to the- S. S. 

I · 

Q. 'Were not you ·cnllor1 uy ['ix-st in your own recruiting aroa? 
\ 

">.. No. 

Q ~ We have Eat ab out fou r 8n] a ha l f . ~r()a r8 ~np from Octo bor 1 91,.0 to 191.5. 'irhat 
h8r>poJlod wh..:;n you .sot t 8 Or an:i.onJ:nl.r[~? ';'[herc did y ou g o t c aftor that? 

. .h.~ Vie D.rrivod in t hu afternoon and i n t~hG avonine 100 of us vrCro sont t c' j,,<1!;l c ,l1Jl! .i +'7 . . 

Q. how l one di d y ou !3tny at Ause hw i tz? J~. Until 21 st JanuD.l'Y 1 945. 

Q • . Y"'U ' E:L1St have \)o on onc of the people; rho ,'rns at jiu'sc11livitz longer than 
s nyb ry] y elso , were not you? j\.. I do not k now . 

Q. The placQ Vias only roally built in 1940, we.s not it? 
-part' of ·the camp wa s thero already. 

.35. 

A. Fhen we arrived 
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Q. You really "i'l8tchod it JJ.r cfw and hclpod it £llong, did rot 'you? A. Yes. 

Q. What wa s your employment there? A. I 'VIa s an electrician. I had my trninins 
first and then my wo rk was nn doctrician. 

Q. Who waS in charge of ' t ho eloctrical work there? A. After a year of 
trnining in the c ompa ny I c ame into the oloctrical departric nt in May 1942 . 
Oberscharfuhrcr Bohn was in charge of that department. 

Q. You had a full year, in fact r o. thor r.lQ re than a yeDX , as an oruinary S.S. 
man first in the c an-lP , d i d yo u? ic . Yes , mo rc than 0. year . 

Q. >:"i'hich part of the c a.mp were you cmpl oy ed in? A~ Ausch7itz No .1. 

Q. Bec ause when you first went there it was all ono , vva s no t it? It had not 
gr()wn into Auschwitz No .1 and No . 2? i .... . Yes, only one CnNp . 

Q. riero you doing e lectl'ical wor k when they were build i ns t he other ono? 
.11.. N') , I have boon working in Auschvvi tz No .1 • 

. 
~ . When you 10ft .A.usch /i tz where di d y:) U 2;0 t o f irst? A. Pirst we went to 

Dunskirchen, Ple.ss ~ 

G. Hnv.J vrore you travelling - by car, by tr3in, by bicyclc , walking Gr' y.'h;::.':? 
A. Wo travelled by car. 

Q~ Were you in this e OW 0Y of a bout ton vehicles wc hearo a bout? A. I 
travelled al onc; in a f r,od truck. 

Q. And did you go on directly until you got t o Bc lson? I DJ an, call in 
somewhero f or the night, 'J bvinusly , but di d you gradually go straight to 
Belson? A. We wlnit fr om DunskiI'chon to Grnssrosen, stayed there for a day 
and a half. Thc;n Vie went t ') Oranionburg. 

8 . Did y") u sea anything of Francioh (No .1 6) nr Pinchen on your way? J1. . No . 

Q. Or l,hthes? i ... No . 

C2 . You havc t o l d us Y0U wore turned into an electrioian again whon you got t o 
Bolsen, and you have t old us all nbout getting this f ood f or your kOlTU-,~ando. 
F nod c" uld bo obtained all right then if anybndy wD.nted it? A. Yes, ~s far 
as I kn0v-I it was possiblo. 

Q. Pr ovic c d an S.S. rilan t ook s uffic i,mt trouble ho oould got both broad and 
margaring for hi s ·1comm.anclo? A. Yos , I (lid "" et it fr c@ the l agoralteste r . 

Q. And the lage r altcstor c ould prod uco i t i f you asked fo r it? A. Well, ha was 
the chief prisoner in the cang;> and he had a sort of an ~xtra supply for the 
wo rking parti es, not " rllY my komrnandn [-:'0t cxtra f ooel but other worlcing 
parties as well. 

Q. Was the position that r')Qoplc wpa wer .. ! fit t o YJ () rk L~ ot f rn~ and people who 
were stick and unf it to work were allOffO cl t o starve? A. I cannot tell. 

Q. Literally thousands of people di d starve t o C'!oath thero , d i d not they? A. Yes. 

Q. But your kommando got fO 'l all right? "1. . Yos. 
Q. J..n(l t he (" thor ' vw rking korrunandos? i" . I have seen soveral Working part ies 

at kitchen 4 VTho reooivod this extra food supply. 
Q. Is that why kitchen No .L~ was kupt (Jut,side in t he S. S. p nrt? A. Yos, it 

wa s oppcisite the S.S. kitchen. 
Q. Is nnt t he truth of the matter that food WD. S pr nduced f or pG0ple fit to work 

and no f ood prr: (~ uCod f or those whf) wore not? 1-... . I do not knrwv ; I can only 
s ay that I received f nod for my ko~[mdo 

Q. Who wa s in charge of kitchen No .4? A. Scharfuhrer Geissler . 
Q. Ana who were the aufseherin in that k itchon? A. I do rot know the . names of 

t he aufschorin,but tho second c nnk wa s Sturmbann Pohl. 
Q. And who was in tho S . S. kitchen when you wo re there? Was 1iathos still 

there? A. Thore WaS Sturmscharfuhrer liby and another chap with the 
Ohristian name of Erich, but I do not know his surname~ 
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Q You told 'us the last t:'me you wont iutormo hathhotJ.s.e ~.on the 6th of 
kpril? A. Yes. 

Q When d~ the electricity fail? A. On t he 12th or JJth A"9ril. 

Q .After that the:'6 was no water sup:p lyp Was there? 
water. 

A. No, ' there Was no 

QI Was evelj1'body very busy then? A. We had enough to do. 

Q A very large p roportion of' the S. S. had gone away, had not they? A. I do 
not know how many went but I went to Nruene Gamme am ..,\hen I oame baok a 
large part of the S. S. [;llld the Wohrmncht had gone. 

q .And the rest of the party, tho ones who wore loft, had a tremendous lot on 
their hands, had not they? A. Yes, wc had quite a lot af work to do r 

bec ause we lost two men and only sto:"nmotz and I wore left to do the job. 

Q I Elm not talking onJ.;y- of eleotrical won:; everybodY in thu Oamp Was hard 
pressed with the amount of work, V.ferc notthay? I,. Yes, I th"_nk so 
bec ause thoro Was qui to El lot of Yvork to do. 

Q Tho oamp vva s in an absolutely dreadful condition, Vfa s. not it? A. I had 
[\lready boon 'Norking on the mD.in street am I cannot say thct condit:'_ons 
were ver-:/ bad thor e, 

Q Thero was only a wire f enoo between the main street and the camps on oi thcr 
side, Wa s. not thOTO? A.. Yes, but wc had onJ,.y to do with olootricnl 
th ings; wo l1..ad nothing to do with the bo.rbod wire beoause t :b.ut Was not 
electrically 10Elded. 

Q Thore wor e 13,000 bodies J..ying about theoarrrp, were not thero, unburiod; 
did not you notice anything about t:1D.t'? A. Whon I arrivccl in 1iIarch we 
worked on -the electrioal installation of tho ITJ[l.in street [lriJ. o.ftor thDt 
until the Brit ish t:coo~)S c amd we did "fork in tho front po.rt of th'e camp anl 
.there wore P..o bodies. 

Q Did you novel' hoa l' any gOSSl:-2 o.bout it in the S. S. quarters? A. I hnve 
not been living i n the S.~. c'luo..rl ors .i four of us vlOro living in tho first 
h"l!-t in t ho front part of the cO.mi). 

Q So th;..~t it must hove oo me as an Inr.f'ul shook to you when the British showod 
you tho state of tho cnulfl , d iU. it? L..;r h2.ve seen tho CC-liT.;? for the first 
timo val0n wo had to oarry boc1ies 4 

Q And you had boon t horo from January onvvards , or February onwards., ana. ho..d 
nover roalised t hat :p OODle were dying all round you in this way? A. That 
was not fiIY jub, 'wo bad -----

Q That was not what I asked you; I asked you v:,hothor you hadmvor noticed. it? 
A Yes , I know thnt. ' 

./ 

Q When an S. S. mon was YDrki:ng about tho co.mp if he saw anything that ho thou.ght 
Was ""vrong he intcr:;'"'crod, d id not ho? A. For nlY ,part, yes, I did; I do 
l:l..otknow ,'.hat others did. 

Q I suggest to you that whe n you saw 'this wo nnn Starowska y.ri th a. bed you 
thought she WaS taking it 'Without permission and so tho.t i s vhon you 
interfered a.lthough it ho.d nothing particular to do "With you? A. I had 
nothing to do with tha t and at that time I was not allovvud to enter t ho 
c amp , and t hore were tiV'O S. S. men on guaret: 

Q mlat time aro you t a lking of? 
conoornecl with thnt bed~ 

A~ Tho salm poriod you arc tal Ling ah:Ju t 

. 1 
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Q What periocl was that? A'. I came for tho first timo in the oanp in th e 
mid.clJ..e . of l.fa.rch; in the n.f'i'irlavit JUl1l.Ulry is mentioned ana. I Was not thoro 
then. 

Q Thnt is v1J.lY I wns asking you vbat ) eriocl you arc talking about because the 
affido.vit says JaJll.aJ:jT and I wanted t o Imov{ what pori ,d you were talking 
about vtlon you saidyati eould not go :'n booause there wore two S. S. guards 
on the gnte? i.... Yes, I wns talking about the middle of IvIarch . booause we 
hnd to find the p eOi)le for our ko;nrnnuo first ani then. we had to find n 
workshop so wc stnrted our wurk in the beginning of Marah. 

Q Dc not worry about 1fo.rch nt all; 10t us taJJ( about the time when you first 
arrivO<l in Be1.scn vhioh you put as the boginning of Febxuor.Y. A.. On the 
4th It'ebJ;:Uory. ' 

(l Do you moan to suy you nover wont t o look Ground the cal:'1p you hacl co r..o to? 
A Wo had no time for tl10t because on tho 6th we started sclooting our 

electric inns; we had to pra-pare our workshop and thon WO had to select 
more poople so wo had qui to a lot ef work to clo. 

Q "'m nover once b.ncl a l ook rounel the co.m[) to seo what sort of o.n clootric:'ll 
installation you had takon over? 1~. No; in that camp thoro ware two 
cIootric ians vho diel the repair wc' }'!::" 

Q I suggest to yau you saw this girl '\7i th a b oo and in the normal am typical 
S. S. manncr you pror:1pt1;y beat hcr first oDd askod h or what she Was doing 
with it afterwards? i~. I o Cln only say I never beat an,ybady; I had never 
al\Yth :inc to do 'with any prisoners t llan ElY own 17 who werp on the j ob. 

Q You cl0 reraet1ber being :in Block 201, cb not YOll? A. Yes. 

Was that blook cUvidod into two ~oar-l;s oo.oh vr ... th its own block altoster? 

._..J.:~"""" 

Q 
(Tho, gives an anSVfor 1.n Gcrrnan) - Do you Lri.nd if you o.nswer rqy question and 
that is, first of all, was the block clividcel into tvvo iJartS? .:~ , I do not 
lOlOW. 

C .. ~T. FTELDEN: Can wo havo the onswer ¥.d1.ioh tho n.ocu.soU gave? 

COl ,. BA,<J.t\HOUSE: As it had nothing tu cb Ivith the C].lcstion I wantol him to 
onswer ;'V quo stiol1 first. (To the llf". tnoss): was t ho block c1ivided into 
two parts? A. I do not Imm". 

Q Wore thero two block altestcrs? I only saW ono. 

THE PRESJ])ENi': Wnot was that othe;,,~ answor? 

THE INTERPRETER: "! have only beon in ono roan, the first t o the loft of the 
entranco. I asked t he peo;?le thoro v.ho.t was wrong ani thOlJtr>lel r,1e D. lar.1p 
VInS not burning in the sooond ro:Xl thoro. I gavo thon a now laq>. I had 
be(.ll1 to.lking to the block altostcr, .i:"ldona; I knew her from Auschwitz. 

/ 

COL. BAClillOUSE: , '\iJ.at was hor nationality? L. A Polish WoJJD.n. 

Q When you wore, :in that block did you soo o.n;y bec"<. thoro? 
ro om" 

i-,.. Not in that 

Q Did you look in t n oothe;r room? 1,.. Yos, wc hnvc beon in the othor 
rooms ond thore wOJ~'C thrc:e tier bunks. , 

Did you soo a bed in either of the rooms? No. 

Q ithat I am s.lggesting to y ou is ... that whilst you were doing this repair y,ork 
you SD.W n bccJ. in there anl y ou boat tho -worJal1 mo had t..rw beel? ~. 'l1lD.t is 
not true. 
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Q Whilst you wore vrandoring round this camp do ing your elootrical. repairs 
did y ou s ce quite a lot of: beating going on? A. Now and then, yos. 

Q Wa s that by both the S. S. anl the Jr.apos? 
by S. S. 

L.. It Was t101"'C by knpos than 

Q . D,id the S. S. lila ke any atte~t t o s top the kapos? A. I . 0 alU10 t tell. 

Q Did y ou? J'i.. No. 

Ci2 T. FIELDEN: No ro-examination.,; 

THE PRESIDENt: This ko umando that y :'u forDo,-,- , this kOmrilD.ndo of o1octricians, 
vh a t sort of :p eoplo were they? What !lD.tionality? 1:,." Ono Russinn, four 
? oles and the others woroJeYls. 

Q When wore you yourself a rre sted? 
hours. 

A. On tho 17th AprU at about 1300 

Q Hnu. you soen D.Y\Y of y our or :'ginal l;:omr.1D.nlo in the c a r,lp nfter tho British, 
came? ... Yes. M:.'\Y I ac.k l scmoth ~ng? 

Q Yes4 1.... When ,vc camG b~k fron carL':;ri.nC the car psos wo wore allowed t o 
I rest near the bnrbou. 'wire and t he se pcople of r,'(Y eleotrioal korJr:la:nUO 'voro 
looking aJ(i us. 

Q Did you tn}}:: 'to then then? .il.. No , we were not allov{Od to. 

THE :?RESIDENT: Havo you any c,nJ.estions on that? 

CA.PT. FIELDE1\]'; Noe. 

(J~t 1716 hours the Court is adjourned 
unt il 0930 hours ruesday 2.3~1 Ootober I 
1945.) 

-----000-:..---
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